
November 18, 2014    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA          6:00 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

2. HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS
Proclamation of DECA (Distributive Education Clubs of America) Week for the week of November
17th.

3. PRESENTATIONS
North Sound Chapter of Demolay – Branden Dawson

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Special and Regular City Council meeting held on November 5, 2014.
b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers.
c. Appointment of Penny Perka to the Oak Harbor Youth Commission for a term of three (3)

years beginning December 2014 and ending December 2017.
d. Reappointment of Marshall Goldberg to the Oak Harbor Library Board for a term of five (5)

years expiring December 2019.
e. Resolution 14-45:  Utility Tax for Arts Acquisition Fund #115.
f. Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Renewal for 3-year term
g. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the Public Works Truck

Scale.
h. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the 42’ Stormwater Out-

fall at Windjammer Park.
i. Leave a Book/Take a Book Program at Windjammer Park.

7. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

- 2015 Whidbey Island Marathon update from the Race Director
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance 
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

1



November 18, 2014    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA          6:00 p.m. 

8. ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 14-40:  2015 Legislative Priorities
b. Resolution 14-46:  Remove restriction on Pioneer Plaza funds designation for lodging tax

revenues.
c. Resolution 14-47:  HDPD Health Savings Account Funding for 2015

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

11. NEW BUSINESS
a. Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Gray & Osborne Professional Services

Agreement for the Water System Plan.
b. Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consulting for the

Stormwater Management Plan.

12. ADJOURNMENT

As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 

For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance 
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

2



Proclamation 
Whereas: DECA (Distributive Education Clubs of America) is an international association of

marketing students; and 

Whereas:  its focus is the education of all aspects of marketing, including professionalism, public

relations, sales, leadership, civic consciousness and employment application skills; 

and  

Whereas:  by teaching these skills to students, the community is provided with future leaders

aware of civic problems and the capacity to solve them; and 

Whereas:  by teaching selling, professionalism and employment application skills, the

community is provided with a skilled workforce with a smaller percentage of 

unemployed youth; and 

Whereas:  DECA provides thousands of dollars in scholarships, allowing more people a chance

to further their education, 

Now Therefore, I, Scott Dudley, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the City of 

Oak Harbor, in the State of Washington, do hereby proclaim the week of November 17
th

 through 23
rd

 

as:  

DECA Week 
in the City of Oak Harbor increasing awareness of this noble organization, making more people aware 

of the life enriching opportunities available to them through DECA, and encouraging all citizens to 

join in this observance. 

 

_______________________________________________ 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and caused the 

Official Seal of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, to be affixed hereunto on this    

________ day of  _______________________________________________________2014.

3



Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

November 5, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Jim Campbell  City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Bob Severns  Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Rick Almberg City Engineer Joe Stowell  

Human Resources Director Sara Piccone 
Senior Planner Cac Kamak 
Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 

Councilmember Jim Campbell gave the invocation, and Mayor Scott Dudley lead the pledge of 
allegiance. 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 

Councilmember Jim Campbell read the Proclamation in Recognition of Veteran’s Day, and pre-
sented to Proclamation to Terry Lacey.  Mr. Lacey announced the Veteran’s Day Parade event 
in the City on November 11, 2014. 

Skip Pohtilla announced upcoming City events in honor of Veteran’s Day. 

PRESENTATION 

Lisa Clark, Director of the Island County Opportunity Council, addressed the City Council about 
the programs and services offered by the Opportunity Council. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:    Councilmember Hizon moved approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion 
  Seconded by Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved. 

Regular Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 1

4



CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the citizen comment period at 6:23 p.m.  
 
Citizen Comments 
 
 Skip Pohtilla  
 Christine Cribb 
 
Mayor Dudley closed the comment period at 6:26 p.m. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
a. Minutes of the Special Meeting and Regular City Council meeting held on October 

21, 2014; Workshop held on October 22, 2014, and Parliamentary Workshop held on 
October 30, 2014. 

b. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable.  
c. Authorize the Mayor to sign the 2016 Water Quality Financial Assistance loan appli-

cation.  
d. Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to Forest City Agreement for Animal 

Control Services. 
e. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to the Washington State Department of 

Corrections Contract. 
f. Ordinance 1706: Ordinance Repealing OHMC 2.04 entitled ‘Salary of the Mayor and 

Councilmen’. 
 
Councilmember Servatius pulled Consent Agenda Item 6.a.   
 
Motion:   Councilmember Severns moved to approve Consent Agenda items 6.b through 6.f as  
      presented.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Servatius asked to amend Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on October 21, 2014, page  
8, to correct the spelling of Mr. Merickel’s name and to reflect that he spoke in support of the  
Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk project. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Consent Agenda item 6.a as  
          amended.  Councilmember Almberg seconded the motion, carried unanimously.    
      
 

MAYOR, STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
Melissa Riker will provide an update on the 2015 Whidbey Island Marathon at the November 18, 
2014 Council Meeting.  
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Dudley announced the success of the Halloween event at Downtown Pioneer on October 
31, 2014. 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 2 
 5



The new art displayed in City Council Chambers was created by Oak Harbor resident and pro-
fessional photographer Erik Lawrenz. 
 
Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Campbell recognized the efforts and success of the Lodging Tax Advisory 
Committee meeting held on November 3, 2014.  
 
Councilmember Almberg recognized the Oak Harbor High School staff administration and play-
er’s decision to forfeit the championship to Marysville Pilchuck High School due to the shooting 
crisis on October 24, 2014. 
 
Councilmember Munns thanked the Downtown Safe Treats event for children on Halloween and 
monetary donations for candy from Island Thrift.  Mike McCarty, CEO of AWC, is retiring and 
proposed that we present a small momentum to him to show the Council’s appreciation for his 
service to Washington Cities.   
 
The Council agreed to provide a card for Mr. McCarty. 
 
Councilmember Severns announced new programs sponsored by the Economic Development 
Council.  
 
Councilmember Hizon announced arts pieces dedicated to the Oak Harbor High School. M s. 
Hizon then announced upcoming community events including a community conversation re-
garding homelessness, hosted by the Spin Café on November 12, and the Youth Commission 
event “What Everyone Needs to Know about Teems and Drug Use” by Dr. Joseph Lee on No-
vember 13, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. at Oak Harbor High School. Councilmember Hizon spoke in favor 
of Congressman Rick Larson’s election for District 2 of Washington in the House of Representa-
tives.    
 
Councilmember Servatius commented on the value of the Parliamentary Training held on Octo-
ber 30, 2014.  He spoke in support of the electronic program to create the City Council Agenda 
Packets.   
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to instruct staff to prepare an Agenda Bill for  
    November, 18, 2014 City Council Meeting to consider removing the restriction on the  
    Pioneer Plaza Project funds.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Hizon.   
 
The Councilmembers discussed the use of the Lodging Tax (LTAC) Hotel/Motel 2% funds and 
their recommendations. 
 
Finance Director Doug Merriman explained the history of the funding strategy for the clock tower 
project.   
 

 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
Resolution 14-38:  Affirming the Support of the City of Oak Harbor during the EIS Scoping   
Period for the new Growler Squadrons 
Dr. Cort, City Administrator, provided the staff report.  
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 3 
 6



Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 7:01 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers Almberg, Munns, Severns, Hizon, and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao spoke in sup-
port of Resolution 14-38. 
 
Resolution 14-38:  Affirming the Support of the City of Oak Harbor during the EIS Scop-
ing Period for the new Growler Squadrons 
 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Munns moved to adopt Resolution 14-38.  Motion Seconded by  
      Councilmember Campbell, carried unanimously. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

Resolution 14-37: Adopt the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
City Engineer Joe Stowell presented the staff report.  
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 7:11 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:11 p.m. 
 
Resolution 14-37: Adopt the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 14-37: Adoption of the Six-Year  
           Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  Motion seconded by Councilmember  
           Munns, carried unanimously. 
 
 
Ordinance 1703:  2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
Development Director Steve Powers introduced Senior Planner Cac Kamac, who presented the 
staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 7:29 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:29 p.m. 
 
 
Ordinance 1703:  2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Ordinance 1703 adopting 2014 Comprehensive  

    Plan Amendments.  Motion Seconded by Councilmember Severns, carried  
    unanimously. 

 
Mayor Dudley called a five-minute recess at 7:33 pm, and the Mayor reconvened the meeting at  
7:40 p.m. 
 
Ordinance 1702:  Property Tax Levy 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided to staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the public hearing at 7:52 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:52 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Severns made inquiries about the report and voiced concerned about rate in-
creases to our citizens. 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 4 
 7



Councilmember Almberg asked questions about the presentation.  Mr. Almberg stated that he 
will not support Ordinance 1702. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao spoke in support of this property tax levy in order to help the deficit. 
 
Councilmember Campbell added that he will support this tax, but may not support this Levy next 
year.  
 
Councilmember Munns thanked Mr. Merriman for the presentation. 
 
Councilmember Servatius asked Mr. Merriman to repeat some figures from the presentation.  
He spoke in support of this Tax in order to provide adequate services to the community. 
 
Councilmember Almberg repeat Councilmember Servatius’ position and made the decision to 
support the tax.   
 
 
Ordinance 1702:  Property Tax Levy 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Almberg moved to adopt Ordinance 1702.  Motion Seconded by  
           Councilmember Servatius, carried by majority vote. 
 
      Councilmember Severns opposed. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Discussion on Waste Water Treatment Plant Bonding Options.   
 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided a framework for the upcoming discussion and intro-
duced the City’s Financial Advisor on the Waste Water treatment Plant, Susan Musselman of 
Public Financial Management. 
 
Susan Musselman presented the Council with financial options and information for the Waste 
Water Treatment Project.   
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 8:50 p.m., no comments, closed at 
8:50 p.m. 
 
The Councilmembers asked about financial options to Susan Musselman.  
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to extend the council meeting to 10:00 p.m.  Coun- 
     cilmember Almberg seconded the motion.  Motion unanimously approved 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Discussion and action on the 2015-16 allocation of utility tax to the Art Acquisition and Mainte-
nance Fund 
Finance Director Doug Merriman presented the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 9:15 p.m.  
 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 5 
 8



Citizen Comments 
 
 Skip Pohtilla, Chair of the Arts Commission, spoke in support of the current allocation of  
 utility tax to the Art Commission. 
 
Mayor Dudley closed the public comments at 9:17 p.m. 
 
Discussion and action on the 2015-16 allocation of utility tax to the Art Acquisition and 
Maintenance Fund 
 
Councilmembers asked questions to the Finance Director regarding the Art fund.  The Council 
discussed changing the present allocation of the utility tax funds.  
 
Councilmember Campbell explained that the he would like to know what projects the Arts 
Commission has proposed in the future to help with the decision-making process. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to extend the Council meeting to 10:30 p.m. 
    Motion seconded on Mayor Pro Tem Paggao, unanimously approved.  
 
Motion:   Councilmember Almberg moved to leave the utility tax dollars that are currently allo- 
     cated to the Arts Commission of a quarter percent utility tax – continue that as is, but  
     with a cap of $50,000.00 a year making that the maximum amount per year.  Motion  
     seconded by Councilmember Campbell, passed by majority vote.  
 
     Councilmembers Munns, Hizon, and Servatius opposed the Motion.   
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councilmember Hizon moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously 
carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:08 p.m.   
 
             Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

Regular Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 6 
 9



Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 

November 5, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and asked the staff and councilmembers 
to introduce themselves. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Jim Campbell City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Bob Severns  Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Dev. Services Director Steve Powers 

City Engineer Joe Stowell  
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone 
Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
City Accountant Tallie Boyer 
Police Exec. Assistant Meg Massey 
Senior Services Admin. Mike McIntyre  
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

Councilmember Munns was absent. 

AGENDA 

2015-2016 Budget and 2015-2020 Capital Improvement Program Discussion 

Doug Merriman, Finance Director reported on the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget. 

Mr. Merriman explained that the increase in the 2015-16 budget compared the last biennial 
budget is largely due to the cost of the Waste Water Plant Project.  Mr. Merriman discussed 
some of the necessary figures listed in the biennial budget, which are due to governmental ac-
counting requirements. 

Dr. Cort inserted discussion regarding union-represented employee salaries.  The next issue is 
what to do with non-union employee salaries relating to the 2015-16 budget.  The City policy is 
to pay salaries based on the market - what other nearby cities pay the same positions.  The 
market adjustment for unrepresented employees is not yet reflected in the proposed budget.  

Health Insurance benefits, including the health savings account funding, for the next two years 
must also be decided.  Staff recommendation is to fund the health savings accounts to the max-
imum amount allowed by the IRS. The Council will need to make a decision on funding the 
health savings accounts during open enrollment period, before the end of November 2014.  

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 1 
10



Councilmember Servatius asked to which employees the fully funded health savings plan ap-
plies.  
 
Councilmember Almberg spoke on specific department budget differences from the amended 
2014 budget and the proposed 2015-16 budget.  Mr. Merriman explained why the projected 
2015-16 budget expenses are higher than last years’.   
 
Councilmember Severns spoke on the differences in the upcoming biennial budget, which is 
largely contributable to the expenses for the waste water treatment plant project. 
 
Mr. Merriman discussed the projected budgets for each department for the next two years.  He 
provided a breakdown of the department budgets into salaries and benefits and then discretion-
al expenses.  It has been proposed to eliminate Medical benefits for the Mayor and Council-
members for the 2015-16 biennial budget.  
 
Councilmember’s Budget 
Councilmember Severns asked for clarification of tier 1 expenses. 
 
Councilmember Servatius asked what tier the funds will be pulled from to purchase iPads for the 
City Council. 
 
Councilmember Severns asked who proposed to eliminate the Council’s medical coverage and 
then asked about the internal review process of the budget.  Dr. Cort added that there are four 
tiers of review for the budget. 
 
Mayor’s Budget 
Mr. Merriman briefly explained proposed changes for the Mayor’s budget. 
 
Legal Budget 
The Finance Director pointed out that another increase in expenses is for the Public Defense 
Contract, based on recent negative findings against the City of Mount Vernon by the U.S. Dis-
trict Court in Seattle. 
 
The municipal court expenses will actually be reduced from 22% to 17% based on the average 
caseload projected for the next two years.  
 
Councilmember Hizon inquired about the labor expenses allotted in the Mayor’s budget, which 
does include the executive assistant’s salary. 
 
Administration  
Dr. Cort discussed additional fulltime positions proposed to be funded in 2015, including the Ex-
ecutive Assistant to the City Administrator and Economic Development Director.  The decision 
will ultimately be up to the Council to fund these positions.  
 
Councilmember Hizon asked whether there is a replacement to the part-time Development Di-
rector position.  The position was recently vacated by Ethan Spoo.  Dr. Cort responded that the 
City staff has contracted Lodging Tax Advisory Committee duties to Mr. Spoo’s new employer, a 
private planning firm. 
 
 
 
 

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 2 
 11



Human Resources Budget 
The Finance Director is proposing a new system for employee accounts – where actual ac-
counts will be set up by Human Resources (HR) and Finance will simply code the bills.  This 
system will add checks and balances to help prevent fraud.   
 
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone discussed the need to purchase software that more 
accurately tracks hourly employees’ hours in order to comply with the Affordable Care Act, 
which requires that employees who work over 30 hours must receive health benefits from their 
employer.  Ms. Piccone explained that overall, the tracking software will lower costs in staff time 
by moving from paper to electronic tracking means.  
 
Councilmember Hizon spoke in support of software to track employee hours.  
 
 
Finance Department Budget 
Dr. Merriman explained necessary upgrades in the finance office for safety.  He plans to pro-
pose re-funding the finance associate’s position, which has been vacant for some time.   
 
 
Development Services Budget 
Discussion of proposed changes in the Development Services Department. 
 
 
General Government 
This fund covers our overhead costs.  Liability insurance with WCIA has increased based on 
recent number of claims filed.  
 
Councilmember Almberg is interested in how WCIA calculates annual liability premiums. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao asked about production expenses and budgeted security upgrades. 
 
 
Police Department Budget 
Police Chief Green stated that there is a need for additional staffing in multiple divisions of the 
Police Department. 
 
 
Animal Control Budget 
There is a need to update our facilities at the Animal Shelter.  Dr. Cort and Mr. Merriman dis-
cussed possible financial resources as well as alternative facilities.  
 
 
Fire Department 
The fire department has requested additional staffing for fulltime positions as well as Paid on 
Calls.   
 
Councilmember Hizon asked about Oak Harbor’s Fire Department staffing as compared to other 
cities on a per capita basis.  Chief Merrill responded that Oak Harbor’s staffing per capita is sig-
nificantly lower than the average. 
 
Councilmember Almberg and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao discussed ratios of Fire department staff-
ing to citizens, which is below the market average.  

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 3 
 12



Emergency Services Budget 
Brief discussion of emergency services budget, which comes from the Fire Department’s budg-
et. 
 
 
Parks Department Budget 
There are some project repairs needed in two City parks.  
 
 
Library Budget 
We have an arrangement in place where the City pays a pro-rated share of the Library’s 
maintenance fees, and then we pass that expense on to Skagit Valley College. 
 
Councilmember Severns and Almberg asked follow-up questions regarding the proposed budg-
et.  Mr. Merriman explained the in-house budget approval process. 
 
 
Reserve Policies 
Finance Director Doug Merriman discussed minimum fund balance requirements for City re-
serves and conflicting reserve policies. 
 

2015-2020 Comprehensive Improvement Plan (CIP) Discussion 
 

Development Director Steve Powers explained that this item was scheduled on the Agenda in 
order to answer any of the Councilmember’s questions on the 2015-2020 CIP before the public 
hearing set for November 18, 2014. 
 
No questions.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley adjourned the meeting at 4:34 p.m.   
 
 
                            Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2014 - Page 4 
 13



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Payroll Check Numbers. 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment.  The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Payroll Check Numbers. 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment.  The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONSPREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:
Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and 
Check Numbers listed in the November 18, 2014 Regular Agenda.

DISCUSSION
Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:  
   - 160285 through 160446 in the amount of $669,289.24.
Approval of Payroll Check Numbers:
   - Direct Deposit Numbers 32786 through 92916.
   - EFT Numbers 661 through 663.
   - Payroll Check Numbers 97610 through 97622.

AUTHORITY

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:
Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and 
Check Numbers listed in the November 18, 2014 Regular Agenda.

DISCUSSION
Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:  
   - 160285 through 160446 in the amount of $669,289.24.
Approval of Payroll Check Numbers:
   - Direct Deposit Numbers 32786 through 92916.
   - EFT Numbers 661 through 663.
   - Payroll Check Numbers 97610 through 97622.

AUTHORITY

  6.

14



ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing No. 1
2. Voucher Listing No. 2

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing No. 1
2. Voucher Listing No. 2

15



11/03/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 8:32:59AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160285 10/31/2014 0000490  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF093014 LABOR & INDUSTRIES  243.83

Total :  243.83

 160286 10/31/2014 0000780  SABALAUSKY, JANET TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  141.50

Total :  141.50

Bank total :  385.33 2 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 385.33Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2

1Page:

16



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160287 11/7/2014 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 110714 PREMIUMS  43.01

Total :  43.01

 160288 11/7/2014 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 103114 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,321.79

Total :  4,321.79

 160289 11/10/2014 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 102914 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  651.00

Total :  651.00

 160290 11/10/2014 0000490  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF103114 LABOR & INDUSTRIES  42.60

Total :  42.60

 160291 11/12/2014 0007273  CAMPGROUND AUTOMATION SYS, INC 2539 PARK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM  185.00

Total :  185.00

 160292 11/12/2014 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 21653 JANITORIAL SERVICES  315.25

 2,813.06JANITORIAL SERVICES21738

 36.08CARPET CLEANER21763

Total :  3,164.39

 160293 11/12/2014 0007332  ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS INV154222 DELTA II SPORT  117.34

 42.94BELTINV156443

 64.08BELTINV156444

Total :  224.36

 160294 11/12/2014 0005405  AGRICULTURE, UNITED STATES DEPT OF 3001448067 ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVI  381.45

Total :  381.45

 160295 11/12/2014 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 24532 PADLOCKS  65.48

Total :  65.48

 160296 11/12/2014 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 0952-722381 LAMP/KIT/BALLAST  242.73

Total :  242.73

 160297 11/12/2014 0007650  AM CONSERVATION GROUP, INC 0151844-IN SHOWERHEADS  871.80

Total :  871.80

1Page:

17



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160298 11/12/2014 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 OCT 2014/WATER PURCHASED  116,316.04

 1,055.27OCT 2014/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 9,148.12OCT 2014/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02

Total :  126,519.43

 160299 11/12/2014 0007664  ANDERSON, MARK 962 MOORAGE REFUND  131.87

Total :  131.87

 160300 11/12/2014 0002629  ANDREWS, KEITH 3972 MOORAGE REFUND  26.98

Total :  26.98

 160301 11/12/2014 0007606  ANDREWS, KIM EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  100.00

Total :  100.00

 160302 11/12/2014 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0648742-IN FUEL  3,571.77

 7,621.73FUEL0651897-IN

 5,048.16FUEL0654926-IN

Total :  16,241.66

 160303 11/12/2014 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X1024201 AIRCARDS  474.06

Total :  474.06

 160304 11/12/2014 0007657  AYBAR, GUADALUPE 110514 KEY DEPOSIT REFUND  5.00

Total :  5.00

 160305 11/12/2014 0007667  BAIN, SAM 439 MOORAGE REFUND  97.98

Total :  97.98

 160306 11/12/2014 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 154313 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE  29.57

 543.64PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE154387

 275.42PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE154388

 1,063.14PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE154665

Total :  1,911.77

 160307 11/12/2014 0000083  BAZA, ALVIN 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160308 11/12/2014 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC 254093 OIL  283.71

2Page:

18



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  283.71 160308 11/12/2014 0000091 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC

 160309 11/12/2014 0000094  BERG VAULT COMPANY 61125 RING/LOCKING  79.21

Total :  79.21

 160310 11/12/2014 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160311 11/12/2014 0007665  BURNETT, ELKA 959 MOORAGE REFUND  56.52

Total :  56.52

 160312 11/12/2014 0002644  C JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION, INC 3 PROF SVC/TRUCK SCALE  28,137.00

Total :  28,137.00

 160313 11/12/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 174340295211 SUPPLIES  412.71

Total :  412.71

 160314 11/12/2014 0006215  CAROLLO 0137149 PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT  67,201.54

Total :  67,201.54

 160315 11/12/2014 0005889  CASCADE RECREATION, INC 6541 BAGGIE DISPENSERS  109.24

Total :  109.24

 160316 11/12/2014 0007666  CHILDERS, JOE 7468 MOORAGE REFUND  43.13

Total :  43.13

 160317 11/12/2014 0004520  COASTAL WEAR PRODUCTS 5204 GUTTERBROOMS  574.54

Total :  574.54

 160318 11/12/2014 0007655  COBAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC 8821 HD CAMPPLATE/CAMERA/ANTENNA/DVMS SOLUTIO 20,452.99

Total :  20,452.99

 160319 11/12/2014 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 CABLE  112.74

 409.84INTERNET8498300271046803

Total :  522.58

 160320 11/12/2014 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 990555 11CDA20  628.84

Total :  628.84

3Page:

19



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160321 11/12/2014 0007074  COX, GENEVIEVE 081814 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

 20.00WELLNESS INCENTIVE110614

Total :  40.00

 160322 11/12/2014 0000225  DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 3293819 BID CALL/ELEVATOR MAINT  193.80

Total :  193.80

 160323 11/12/2014 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-34 PORTABLES  49.95

 49.95PORTABLES1-500619-34

 49.95PORTABLES1-509920-18

 49.95PORTABLES1-515826-9

 49.95PORTABLES1-521007-2

 49.95PORTABLES1-521401

 99.90PORTABLES1-521402

 49.95PORTABLES1-521403

 49.95PORTABLES1-521404

 49.95PORTABLES1-521405

 49.95PORTABLES1-521406

Total :  599.40

 160324 11/12/2014 0007659  DICKINSON, ROBERT 6976 MOORAGE REFUND  105.85

Total :  105.85

 160325 11/12/2014 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 103114 OCT 2014/LAUNDRY SERVICES  262.74

 19.56LAUNDRY SERVICES1079

Total :  282.30

 160326 11/12/2014 0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS 417839 GENERATOR TESTING  1,435.41

 455.46GENERATOR TESTING417996

 439.15GENERATOR TESTING417997

 439.15GENERATOR TESTING417998

 436.43GENERATOR TESTING418001

 439.15GENERATOR TESTING418002

 439.15GENERATOR TESTING418003

 436.43GENERATOR TESTING418004

 433.72GENERATOR TESTING418005

 436.43GENERATOR TESTING418006

4Page:

20



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160326 11/12/2014 (Continued)0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS

 436.43GENERATOR TESTING418007

 433.72GENERATOR TESTING418008

 433.72GENERATOR TESTING418009

 436.43GENERATOR TESTING418010

 493.50GENERATOR TESTING418011

 531.55GENERATOR TESTING418013

Total :  8,155.83

 160327 11/12/2014 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 110414 CERTIFICATION RENEWALS  270.00

Total :  270.00

 160328 11/12/2014 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 14-21025 TESTING  18.00

Total :  18.00

 160329 11/12/2014 0007669  EJ USA, INC 3782325 RISERS  181.82

Total :  181.82

 160330 11/12/2014 0006209  ELLIOTT TIRE & SERVICE, INC 092673 TIRES  1,047.43

Total :  1,047.43

 160331 11/12/2014 0000278  EMERALD SERVICES, INC I314795 RECYCLING  313.68

Total :  313.68

 160332 11/12/2014 0007334  ENVIRONIX 404112 ASBESTOS SAMPLING  625.00

Total :  625.00

 160333 11/12/2014 0006389  EQ HARBOR SERVICE, INC 1135 ENGINE MAINTENANCE  1,026.19

Total :  1,026.19

 160334 11/12/2014 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 11-410-6 PROF SVC/42" OUTFALL  68,015.26

 43,818.94PROF SVC/WWTP13-475-5

Total :  111,834.20

 160335 11/12/2014 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK18534 COVERALLS  407.58

 46.88HOSE CLMPWAOAK18576

 170.78SAFETY GLASSWAOAK18577

 152.86LOCK NUTWAOAK18589

5Page:

21



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160335 11/12/2014 (Continued)0002900  FASTENAL

 16.49FASTENERSWAOAK18594

Total :  794.59

 160336 11/12/2014 0006991  FIKSE, JOSH 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160337 11/12/2014 0003413  FIRE SERVICE BOOKSTORE 300005543 FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES INSTRUCTOR  449.24

Total :  449.24

 160338 11/12/2014 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 113014 DEC 2014/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 160339 11/12/2014 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  1,295.84

 130.94CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-8539

 229.38CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568

 67.94CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669

 62.61CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858

 66.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500

 62.76CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640

 62.61CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651

 62.76CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789

 357.84CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628

 67.52CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902

 89.24CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  2,556.29

 160340 11/12/2014 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 100080 TREATED  11.23

 35.93FENCING/DRIED100156

 9.13FENCING100166

Total :  56.29

 160341 11/12/2014 0000329  GALLS 002584398 PANTS  279.96

 112.50BOOTS/ANDERSON002592436

 126.00SAFETY JACKET002605700

 126.00JACKET002615047

 69.99PANTS/HOLCOMB002620419

6Page:

22



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  714.45 160341 11/12/2014 0000329 0000329  GALLS

 160342 11/12/2014 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  709.60

Total :  709.60

 160343 11/12/2014 0000349  GRAINGER 9568430590 STRAINER  194.78

Total :  194.78

 160344 11/12/2014 0006590  HAFFNER, OTTO 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160345 11/12/2014 0007236  HAMMOND, JACOB 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160346 11/12/2014 0007668  HAMPTON INN - SEATTLE AIRPORT 517693 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/WELSHANS  312.46

 312.46HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/ROBINSON517737

 312.46HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/JAMESON517738

Total :  937.38

 160347 11/12/2014 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 54981453 COMPUTERS  3,908.85

Total :  3,908.85

 160348 11/12/2014 0003562  HIGH PERFORMANCE SIGNS 18979 LETTERS  1,287.00

Total :  1,287.00

 160349 11/12/2014 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 3022145 PHOTO EYES  32.56

Total :  32.56

 160350 11/12/2014 0006520  HOPKINS, CAMERON 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160351 11/12/2014 0000392  HUBBARD, SCOTT 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160352 11/12/2014 0000394  HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 102414 NOV 2014/UNEMPLOYMENT SERVICES  110.00

Total :  110.00

 160353 11/12/2014 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 572734-2 CLAMP  39.75

7Page:

23



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160353 11/12/2014 (Continued)0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY

 598.21CYLINDERS/TIES/SWIVELS/SOCKETS574188-1

Total :  637.96

 160354 11/12/2014 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 103114 OCT 2014/TIPPING FEES  78,892.02

Total :  78,892.02

 160355 11/12/2014 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 09 3RD QTR 2014/MUNICIPAL COURT RENTAL  4,300.00

 56,199.223RD QTR 2014/MUNICIPAL COURT EXPENSES101614

 200.32CRIME VICTIMS COMPENSATION110314

Total :  60,699.54

 160356 11/12/2014 0000412  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 110614 4TH QTR 2014/JOINT TOURISM  5,000.00

Total :  5,000.00

 160357 11/12/2014 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 110114 RECYCLING  5,096.70

Total :  5,096.70

 160358 11/12/2014 0001354  ISLAND FAMILY HEARING CLINIC 16033 HEARING TESTS  25.00

 25.00HEARING TESTS16096

Total :  50.00

 160359 11/12/2014 0007604  JANSEN, JOSH 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160360 11/12/2014 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 19957 DUMPING  57.23

Total :  57.23

 160361 11/12/2014 0002227  LABORATORY CORPORATION OF 46238746 EMPLOYMENT TESTING  194.00

Total :  194.00

 160362 11/12/2014 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5035240MB ASPHALT  206.24

Total :  206.24

 160363 11/12/2014 0003570  LAMB, RANDY 3890 MOORAGE REFUND  172.11

Total :  172.11

 160364 11/12/2014 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 10 INTERPRETER SERVICES  227.50

8Page:

24



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  227.50 160364 11/12/2014 0000889 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE

 160365 11/12/2014 0006604  LEADSONLINE, LLC 229954 SERVICE RENEWAL  1,988.00

Total :  1,988.00

 160366 11/12/2014 0005277  LEE, STEPHANIE 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160367 11/12/2014 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2118571-00 GEN 2 FIELD SERVICE  81.53

Total :  81.53

 160368 11/12/2014 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  132.00

Total :  132.00

 160369 11/12/2014 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 91798 YARD WASTE  122.50

 122.50YARD WASTE91827

 70.00YARD WASTE91965

 70.00YARD WASTE92004

 105.00YARD WASTE92050

 105.00YARD WASTE92092

 175.00YARD WASTE92131

 70.00YARD WASTE92216

 35.00YARD WASTE92253

 70.00YARD WASTE92287

 87.50YARD WASTE92326

 105.00YARD WASTE92362

 35.00YARD WASTE92447

 52.50YARD WASTE92488

 20.00YARD WASTE92502

 135.00YARD WASTE92525

 135.00YARD WASTE92553

 173.50YARD WASTE92584

 86.35YARD WASTE92653

 135.00YARD WASTE92686

 85.65YARD WASTE92711

 96.15YARD WASTE92734

 129.75YARD WASTE92759

9Page:

25



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,221.40 160369 11/12/2014 0000530 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY

 160370 11/12/2014 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 311315 GROCERIES  575.10

 407.50GROCERIES311321

Total :  982.60

 160371 11/12/2014 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P36804 OCT 2014/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  453.92

Total :  453.92

 160372 11/12/2014 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 36804 OCT 2014/MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  266.32

Total :  266.32

 160373 11/12/2014 0007660  MCARTHUR, EMILY 4376 MOORAGE REFUND  154.11

Total :  154.11

 160374 11/12/2014 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  56.00

Total :  56.00

 160375 11/12/2014 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  846.79

Total :  846.79

 160376 11/12/2014 0007163  MICRO DATA 41657 CRIMINAL CITATIONS  728.33

Total :  728.33

 160377 11/12/2014 0000568  MIDWAY MUFFLER & TIRE 93780 IRONMAN  249.66

Total :  249.66

 160378 11/12/2014 0005445  MONTOYA, MATTHEW J 110 OCT 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE  8,000.00

Total :  8,000.00

 160379 11/12/2014 0006992  MOON, ANDREW 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160380 11/12/2014 0007661  MORRIS, BRUCE 5044 MOORAGE REFUND  86.20

Total :  86.20

 160381 11/12/2014 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 00571120_SNV REPAIR KIT  148.92

Total :  148.92

10Page:

26



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160382 11/12/2014 0007586  NAGEL, GARRETT 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160383 11/12/2014 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCR0037192 BELT/HANDLE/CLAMP -72.54

 94.88BLOCKSMVCS0240180

Total :  22.34

 160384 11/12/2014 0007670  NETWORKFLEET, INC INVE0060352 DIAGNOSTICS  1,383.90

Total :  1,383.90

 160385 11/12/2014 0000615  NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS TI-0279817 SIGNS  694.73

Total :  694.73

 160386 11/12/2014 0007663  NEWMAN, DAN 5751 MOORAGE REFUND  20.67

Total :  20.67

 160387 11/12/2014 0000621  NIIRO, CEDRIC 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160388 11/12/2014 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 345661 AMMONIA/SOLUTION/FILTERS  838.98

Total :  838.98

 160389 11/12/2014 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 245818 TAPE  9.77

 8.14TOILET SEAT245910

 3.85PIPE246552

-8.14TOILET SEAT246649

 6.51WETPATCH246788

 41.27FILTERS/BATTERIES247006

 17.35MARKERS247009

 57.58BAR/PLIERS247051

 18.98CEMENT/PUTTY KNIFE247121

 26.03ANCR SHACKL247152

 45.24TUBE/CLIPS/TEES/DRAIN247223

 21.79BATTERIES247306

 19.54SEALANT247390

 59.66SPLICE KITS/ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES247394

 11.96EYE BOLT/NUTS247405

 2.71FUSE247434

11Page:

27



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160389 11/12/2014 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 10.73BULBS247438

 21.72SQUEEGEE/PAN247457

 6.83STAND/THERMOMETER247485

 0.93FASTENERS247516

 25.62FILE/BRUSH247523

 33.02OIL/TOOLS247541

Total :  441.09

 160390 11/12/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-219993 FILTERS  25.45

 21.94LAMP001-220172

 3.79RUBBER PLUG001-220184

 4.40FILTERS001-220217

 21.89FILTERS001-220254

 4.57SEALER001-220368

 12.26CLAMP001-220369

 78.44FILTERS001-220591

 39.22FILTERS001-220592

 20.72FILTERS001-220667

 95.44CYLINDERS001-220781

 4.40FILTERS001-220786

Total :  332.52

 160391 11/12/2014 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 113014 NOV 2014/MARATHON SERVICES  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 160392 11/12/2014 0000673  OAK HARBOR MOTORS 45259 SWITCH  128.70

Total :  128.70

 160393 11/12/2014 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000140006 SEP 2014/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  6,708.33

 6,708.33OCT 2014/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT0000140011

Total :  13,416.66

 160394 11/12/2014 0003092  OAK HARBOR SIGNS 209 SIGNS  217.40

Total :  217.40

 160395 11/12/2014 0007548  OFFICE AUTOMATION SYSTEMS 88180 PRINTER  9,777.57

12Page:

28



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160395 11/12/2014 (Continued)0007548  OFFICE AUTOMATION SYSTEMS

-145.86CREDIT88624

Total :  9,631.71

 160396 11/12/2014 0000666  OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE 715496 PROF SVC/SWINOMISH TRIBAL COMMUNITY  1,603.52

 598.50PROF SVC/TRAVELERS VS PERTEET715497

Total :  2,202.02

 160397 11/12/2014 0007656  OSIER, LINDA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  80.00

Total :  80.00

 160398 11/12/2014 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0082079 TIRES  71.61

 51.00TIRES0082080

 71.61TIRES0082081

 143.22TIRES0082082

 51.00TIRES0082083

 1,311.42TIRES0082109

Total :  1,699.86

 160399 11/12/2014 0001615  PART WORKS, INC 385691 FAUCET  307.93

-293.12FAUCET387489

 100.18ACTUATOR388801

 336.14REPAIR KIT392690

Total :  451.13

 160400 11/12/2014 0007171  PEABODY, CHRISTOPHER 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160401 11/12/2014 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160402 11/12/2014 0000726  PORT SUPPLY 6357 LINE-STASET  341.79

Total :  341.79

 160403 11/12/2014 0000729  POSTMASTER 102914 POSTAGE  310.00

Total :  310.00

 160404 11/12/2014 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0022629-IN PRESERVATIVE  45.36

13Page:

29



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160404 11/12/2014 (Continued)0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT

 274.43FIRST AID KIT/BLOODBORNE PATH KIT002436-IN

 78.10BLOODBORNE PATH KIT002546-IN

Total :  397.89

 160405 11/12/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200003131170 ELECTRICITY/WELL #7  13.13

 13.13ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 13,092.10ELECTRICITY/FT NUGENT RD300000007421

Total :  13,118.36

 160406 11/12/2014 0004654  RILEY, KENNETH EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  175.00

Total :  175.00

 160407 11/12/2014 0001649  RIX, KATHY 103114 REIMBURSEMENT  93.45

Total :  93.45

 160408 11/12/2014 0003024  ROBBINS, EPHRAIM 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160409 11/12/2014 0000791  SCHEER, KEVIN 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160410 11/12/2014 0000796  SCHROER, PAUL 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160411 11/12/2014 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH 092614 PETTY CASH  294.67

Total :  294.67

 160412 11/12/2014 0000817  SHELLEY, TIM 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160413 11/12/2014 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-295608 TOOLBOXES  224.63

 446.76TIRES14-295684

Total :  671.39

 160414 11/12/2014 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 525148 PERENNIAL  795.14

Total :  795.14

14Page:

30



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160415 11/12/2014 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0072744-IN LINK ASSY  246.25

Total :  246.25

 160416 11/12/2014 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW593582 CITY APPLICATIONS  249.20

 139.55CITY APPLICATIONSWCW594283

 125.85CITY APPLICATIONSWCW594284

 139.55CITY APPLICATIONSWCW594914

 157.00COUNTY NOTICESWCW595472

 80.99CITY NOTICESWCW596181

Total :  892.14

 160417 11/12/2014 0000851  SPRINT 140239187 LONG DISTANCE  8.83

Total :  8.83

 160418 11/12/2014 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3244889747 HP 951XL  204.33

 65.31PAPER/CORRECTION TAPE/PENS/BATTERIES3244889749

 31.08FOLDERS/PAPER CLIPS/PENCILS3245473457

 101.12TONER3245473458

 29.12FOLDERS3245473459

 11.96ENVELOPES3245473461

 434.79OFFICEJET PRO3246021969

 51.04PRESSBOARD/FASTENERS3246021970

 57.71LABELS/FOLDERS3246539859

Total :  986.46

 160419 11/12/2014 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  96.00

 114.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 138.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  348.00

 160420 11/12/2014 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1007976 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79

 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1032633

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1032639

 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1032652

 38.05PEST EXTERMINATION1035551

 32.61PEST EXTERMINATION1035553

Total :  234.81

15Page:

31



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160421 11/12/2014 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  216.93

Total :  216.93

 160422 11/12/2014 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 110314 COURT/BC FEES  10,302.34

Total :  10,302.34

 160423 11/12/2014 0007293  TRISLER, SHAWN 110414 RACE WEEK SECURITY  285.00

Total :  285.00

 160424 11/12/2014 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 102014 LONG TERM CARE  215.70

Total :  215.70

 160425 11/12/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  4,812.80

Total :  4,812.80

 160426 11/12/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,747.17

Total :  1,747.17

 160427 11/12/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000611990 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  892.08

Total :  892.08

 160428 11/12/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  422.59

Total :  422.59

 160429 11/12/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304661 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  202.00

Total :  202.00

 160430 11/12/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  137.76

Total :  137.76

 160431 11/12/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000222970 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  21.74

Total :  21.74

 160432 11/12/2014 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 483952 PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE  354.58

 80.91PLUG486182

 1,712.74CHART RECORDER487284

Total :  2,148.23

16Page:

32



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160433 11/12/2014 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 4100171 OCT 2014/LOCATES  115.50

Total :  115.50

 160434 11/12/2014 0006147  VALDEZ, RAFAEL 5210 MOORAGE REFUND  137.52

Total :  137.52

 160435 11/12/2014 0007388  WALSTAD, TIM 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160436 11/12/2014 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE 20114127 REGISTRATION/PEABODY  500.00

Total :  500.00

 160437 11/12/2014 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1274 OCT 2014/ANIMAL SHELTER  8,333.37

Total :  8,333.37

 160438 11/12/2014 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 227602 CLAMP  31.02

 14.24GAUGE228295

Total :  45.26

 160439 11/12/2014 0001005  WHIDBEY GENERAL HOSPITAL WAC18409 INMATE SERVICES  374.85

 2,046.80INMATE SERVICESWAC18569

Total :  2,421.65

 160440 11/12/2014 0002272  WHIDBEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB 1 SENIOR CENTER FASHION SHOW  853.13

Total :  853.13

 160441 11/12/2014 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 47296 BUSINESS CARDS/LINDENBURG  78.10

 78.10BUSINESS CARDS/DUDLEY47335

Total :  156.20

 160442 11/12/2014 0007510  WHIDBEY TECH SOLUTIONS 60577 WI-FI SUPPORT  92.40

Total :  92.40

 160443 11/12/2014 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3781554 CURRENT NET SERVICES  24.00

 63.05ALARM MONITORING3782586

Total :  87.05

 160444 11/12/2014 0007658  WILLIAMS, STEVE 7296 MOORAGE REFUND  62.13

17Page:

33



11/12/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 4:02:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  62.13 160444 11/12/2014 0007658 0007658  WILLIAMS, STEVE

 160445 11/12/2014 0007662  WITTS, CHAD 6560 MOORAGE REFUND  41.49

Total :  41.49

 160446 11/12/2014 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY 110614 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

Bank total :  668,903.91 160 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 668,903.91Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 160

18Page:

34



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Appointment of Penny Perka to 
the Oak Harbor Youth 
Commission for a term of three 
(3) years beginning December 
2014 and ending December 
2017. 

FROM: Scott Dudley, Mayor 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is for the Council to confirm Mayor Dudley’s appointment of Penny Perka
to the Youth Commission.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Appointment of Penny Perka to 
the Oak Harbor Youth 
Commission for a term of three 
(3) years beginning December 
2014 and ending December 
2017. 

FROM: Scott Dudley, Mayor 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is for the Council to confirm Mayor Dudley’s appointment of Penny Perka 
to the Youth Commission.

SUMMARY STATEMENTSUMMARY STATEMENT
Penny Perka has been recommended for appointment by Council member Tara Hizon.  Council member
Hizon currently serves on the Youth Commission representing the City of Oak Harbor.  Also, Ms. 
Perka's appointment is supported by the members of the Youth Commission. Additional information for 
your consideration has been provided by Ms. Perka in the attached Bio Form.

Mayor Dudley recommends Penny Perka's appointment to the Library Board for a term to begin 
December 2014 and ending December 2017.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
None.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
None.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm the appointment of Penny Perka to a three (3) year term on the Youth Commission ending 
December 2017.

DISCUSSION

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Penny Perka has been recommended for appointment by Council member Tara Hizon.  Council member 
Hizon currently serves on the Youth Commission representing the City of Oak Harbor.  Also, Ms. 
Perka's appointment is supported by the members of the Youth Commission. Additional information for 
your consideration has been provided by Ms. Perka in the attached Bio Form.

Mayor Dudley recommends Penny Perka's appointment to the Library Board for a term to begin 
December 2014 and ending December 2017.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
None.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
None.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm the appointment of Penny Perka to a three (3) year term on the Youth Commission ending 
December 2017.

DISCUSSION

6.

35



DISCUSSION
The Oak Harbor Youth Commission serves as an advocacy group assessing and identifying the needs of
the youth in our community. The Commission keeps the Mayor and City Council informed of the state of
the youth in the Greater Oak Harbor area and works with youth service providers to address identified 
needs. Appointed commission members serve three (3) year terms.

AUTHORITY
The Oak Harbor Youth Commission was established by Ordinance 1463 in 2006.  Chapter 2.250 of the 
Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) states that up to seventeen (17) members shall be appointed by
the Mayor subject to approval by the City Council each for a three (3) year term.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Bio Form - Penny Perka 11.2014

DISCUSSION
The Oak Harbor Youth Commission serves as an advocacy group assessing and identifying the needs of 
the youth in our community. The Commission keeps the Mayor and City Council informed of the state of 
the youth in the Greater Oak Harbor area and works with youth service providers to address identified 
needs. Appointed commission members serve three (3) year terms.

AUTHORITY
The Oak Harbor Youth Commission was established by Ordinance 1463 in 2006.  Chapter 2.250 of the 
Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) states that up to seventeen (17) members shall be appointed by 
the Mayor subject to approval by the City Council each for a three (3) year term.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Bio Form - Penny Perka 11.2014

36



Biography Form 

Recommended Board Appointment for: 
Oak Harbor Youth Commission 

Name: Penny Perka Date: October 29, 2014 

Address: 913 East Whidbey Avenue City, State, Zip: Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

Telephone Number: 350-279-0644 Email: pennyp@bbbsislandcounty.org 

Resident of Oak Harbor/Whidbey Island for: 15 years, I also have a home on Fidalgo Island 

Occupation and Place of Employment:  Executive Director, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island  County since 

3/2013; previous employment as Youth Educator/Advocate for CADA, Citizens Against Domestic and Sexual 

Abuse; and Advisor/Student Programs for Skagit Valley College, Whidbey Island Campus 1999 to 2011 

Local Group or Civic Affiliations: WA State Big Brothers Big Sisters Council 

Special Interests: Mentoring, education/college success, sailing, geo-caching, travel, arts and culture 

Other General Comments: 

Helping children and youth succeed in life makes life better for the child, their family and our 

community at large.   The Oak Harbor Youth Commission purpose is through coordinated efforts, advocacy 

and communication to improve the lives of children and youth in our community and advise the mayor and 

city council concerning the welfare, education, recreation, job needs and delinquency matters related to youth 

in the greater Oak Harbor community.   

Bringing together people from various viewpoints and organizations is a smart strategy because the 

challenges facing our children, youth and families are complex and require our collective brains & brawn. 

Together we can do so much more.  

I’ve lived and worked on Whidbey Island for more than15 years. I have worked in higher education for 

25 years, and I currently work as the Executive Director of Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County.  I welcome 

the chance to serve as an OHYC member and work with other community leaders in making a positive 

difference for our children!  

37

mailto:pennyp@bbbsislandcounty.org


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. d.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Reappointment of Marshall 
Goldberg to the Oak Harbor 
Library Board for a term of five 
(5) years expiring December 
2019. 

FROM: Scott Dudley, Mayor 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is for the Council to confirm Mayor Dudley’s reappointment of Dr. 
Marshall Goldberg to the Library Board.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Dr. Marshall Goldberg was appointed to the Library Board in November 2009.  Dr. Goldberg has 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. d.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Reappointment of Marshall 
Goldberg to the Oak Harbor 
Library Board for a term of five 
(5) years expiring December 
2019. 

FROM: Scott Dudley, Mayor 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is for the Council to confirm Mayor Dudley’s reappointment of Dr. 
Marshall Goldberg to the Library Board.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Dr. Marshall Goldberg was appointed to the Library Board in November 2009.  Dr. Goldberg has Dr. Marshall Goldberg was appointed to the Library Board in November 2009.  Dr. Goldberg has 
confirmed that he is willing to serve another term.  If confirmed, the term would expire December 2019.

Mayor Dudley recommends Dr. Marshall Goldberg's reappointment to the Library Board to a term 
expiring December 2019.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
No fiscal impact expected.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
Council has previosly appointed Dr. Goldberg to his initial five (5) year term to the Library board starting
November 2009.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
None.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm Dr. Goldberg's reappointment to the Library Board.

DISCUSSION

Dr. Marshall Goldberg was appointed to the Library Board in November 2009.  Dr. Goldberg has 
confirmed that he is willing to serve another term.  If confirmed, the term would expire December 2019.

Mayor Dudley recommends Dr. Marshall Goldberg's reappointment to the Library Board to a term 
expiring December 2019.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
No fiscal impact expected.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
Council has previosly appointed Dr. Goldberg to his initial five (5) year term to the Library board starting 
November 2009.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
None.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm Dr. Goldberg's reappointment to the Library Board.

DISCUSSION

  6.

38



The duty of the Library Board is to provide advice and recommendations to the Mayor and City Council
regarding general supervision and provision of library facilities and programs in accordance with the 
contract for library service with the Sno-Isle Regional Library.  Support to the Library Board is provided 
by Mary Campbell, Managing Librarian, Oak Harbor Library.

AUTHORITY
The Library Board was established by Ordinance 1035 in 1996.  It is composed of five (5) members 
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council each for a five (5) year term.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Correspondence from Susan Norman, President, Oak Harbor Library Board - 10.09.2014

The duty of the Library Board is to provide advice and recommendations to the Mayor and City Council 
regarding general supervision and provision of library facilities and programs in accordance with the 
contract for library service with the Sno-Isle Regional Library.  Support to the Library Board is provided 
by Mary Campbell, Managing Librarian, Oak Harbor Library.

AUTHORITY
The Library Board was established by Ordinance 1035 in 1996.  It is composed of five (5) members 
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council each for a five (5) year term.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Correspondence from Susan Norman, President, Oak Harbor Library Board - 10.09.2014

39



40



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. e.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-45: Utility Tax for 
Arts Acquisition Fund #115.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda item is for the City Council to decide, per Oak Harbor Municipal Code 
section 3.71.060, what proportion of the utility tax collected shall be allocated to the art acquisition fund 
for the biennial budget period of 2015-2016.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In 2009, City Council passed Ordinance #1547 which in part established OHMC Section 3.71.060 with
the following language:

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. e.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-45: Utility Tax for 
Arts Acquisition Fund #115.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda item is for the City Council to decide, per Oak Harbor Municipal Code 
section 3.71.060, what proportion of the utility tax collected shall be allocated to the art acquisition fund 
for the biennial budget period of 2015-2016.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In 2009, City Council passed Ordinance #1547 which in part established OHMC Section 3.71.060 with 
the following language:the following language:

“3.71.060 Allocation of utility tax to the art acquisition and maintenance fund.

The city council shall decide, no less frequently than through the adoption of every biennial budget, what
proportion of the utility tax collected pursuant to this chapter shall be allocated to the art acquisition and 
maintenance fund for the purposes set forth in Chapter 3.26 OHMC. (Ord. 1547 § 1, 2009).”

In order to comply with this code section, City Council needs to formally decide what proportion of the 
utility tax collected shall be allocated to the art acquisition and maintenance fund.  Currently, a .25% 
proportion of the utility tax collected for water, sewer, and storm drain businesses is directed to art 
acquisition and maintenance purposes under this section.  This discussion does not address the remaining
6% utility tax charged to each utility.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
No impact.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
During the November 5, 2014 regular City Council meeting, a motion was made, seconded, and 
approved for staff to propose a Resolution with a provision effectively limiting the annual transfer of utility
tax revenues into Fund #115 Arts Acquisitioin & Maintenance Fund, to $50,000.00 per year.  

the following language:

“3.71.060 Allocation of utility tax to the art acquisition and maintenance fund.

The city council shall decide, no less frequently than through the adoption of every biennial budget, what 
proportion of the utility tax collected pursuant to this chapter shall be allocated to the art acquisition and 
maintenance fund for the purposes set forth in Chapter 3.26 OHMC. (Ord. 1547 § 1, 2009).”

In order to comply with this code section, City Council needs to formally decide what proportion of the 
utility tax collected shall be allocated to the art acquisition and maintenance fund.  Currently, a .25% 
proportion of the utility tax collected for water, sewer, and storm drain businesses is directed to art 
acquisition and maintenance purposes under this section.  This discussion does not address the remaining 
6% utility tax charged to each utility.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
No impact.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
During the November 5, 2014 regular City Council meeting, a motion was made, seconded, and 
approved for staff to propose a Resolution with a provision effectively limiting the annual transfer of utility 
tax revenues into Fund #115 Arts Acquisitioin & Maintenance Fund, to $50,000.00 per year.  

6.

41

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor03/OakHarbor0326.html#3.26


Accordingly, the proposed Resolution No. 14-45 attached hereto incorporates such a limit.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 14-45

DISCUSSION
None

AUTHORITY
Under RCW 35A.11.020, The legislative body of each code city shall have power to organize and 
regulate its internal affairs within the provisions of this title and its charter, if any; and to define the 
functions, powers, and duties of its officers and employees. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 14-45: Utility tax allocated to the ARts Acquisition & Maintenance Fund #115

Accordingly, the proposed Resolution No. 14-45 attached hereto incorporates such a limit.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 14-45

DISCUSSION
None

AUTHORITY
Under RCW 35A.11.020, The legislative body of each code city shall have power to organize and 
regulate its internal affairs within the provisions of this title and its charter, if any; and to define the 
functions, powers, and duties of its officers and employees. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 14-45: Utility tax allocated to the ARts Acquisition & Maintenance Fund #115

42



Resolution No. 14-45: 2015-2016 Utility tax allocation to Arts Acquisition and Maintenance Fund #115. Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-45 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR COUNCIL REGARDING THE PROPORTION 

OF UTILITY TAX COLLECTED UNDER OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 3.71 

THAT SHALL BE ALLOCATED TO THE ART ACQUISITION AND MAINTNENACE FUND #115 

DURING THE 2015-2016 BIENNIAL BUDGET PERIOD.  

WHEREAS, The City of Oak Harbor has an established utility tax on suppliers of water, sewer collection and 

treatment, solid waste, and storm water collection services within the City; and 

WHEREAS, Oak Harbor Municipal Code section 3.71.060 requires City Council of the City of Oak Harbor to 

decide, no less frequently than through the adoption of every biennial budget, what proportion of utility tax 

collected shall be allocated to art acquisition and maintenance purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor wishes to set the proportionate utility tax allocation for 

the 2015-2016 biennial budget period; and 

WHEREAS, at the November 5, 2014 regular City Council meeting, a motion was made, seconded, and 

approved to limit the transfer of utility tax funds into Fund #115 Arts Acquisition & Maintenance Fund to 

$50,000.00 per annum. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, 

RESOLVES TO SET THE AMOUNT OF REVENUE TO BE TRANSFERRED INTO FUND #115 ARTS 

ACQUISITION & MAINTNENANCE FUND FOR THE 2015-2016 BIENNIAL PERIOD TO EQUAL THE 

.25% UTILITY TAX RATE ASSESSED AGAINST THE APPLICABLE REVENUES OF THE WATER 

FUND #401, THE WASTE WATER FUND #402, AND THE SOLID WASTE FUND #403, WITH THE 

TOTAL TRANSFER OF REVENUE NOT TO EXCEED $50,000.00 PER ANNUM. 

PASSED and approved by the City Council this 18
TH

 day of November, 2014.

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, Esq., City Clerk Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Introduction: 

Adopted: 

Published:  

43



Resolution No. 14-45: 2015-2016 Utility tax allocation to Arts Acquisition and Maintenance Fund #115.  Page 2 

 

 

 

44



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. f.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 
Renewal for 3-year term.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill requests authorization to enter into a contract with Microsoft via the Washington State 
Department of Enterprise Services for a three year subscription to provide the City of Oak Harbor with
170 user software licenses in the amount of $42,265.00.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

Microsoft Select is a purchasing agreement for software license products designed to reduce costs 
associated with acquiring, maintaining and managing Microsoft software. Through this agreement state 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. f.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 
Renewal for 3-year term.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill requests authorization to enter into a contract with Microsoft via the Washington State 
Department of Enterprise Services for a three year subscription to provide the City of Oak Harbor with 
170 user software licenses in the amount of $42,265.00.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

Microsoft Select is a purchasing agreement for software license products designed to reduce costs 
associated with acquiring, maintaining and managing Microsoft software. Through this agreement state associated with acquiring, maintaining and managing Microsoft software. Through this agreement state 
and local government organizations benefits from special discounts available to very large corporate 
customers. 

The Washington State Department of Enterprise Services (DES) procures the licenses and services on 
our behalf and through our Master Contracts Usage Agreement with DES; we are able to take advantage 
of the discounted rates.  The discount is typically 20%.  

The City of Oak Harbor has an obligation to make sure that every device that uses our servers are 
accounted for and reported to Microsoft.  Each year a true up is conducted and turned over to 
Microsoft.  This year the City was notified that the devices we need to account for include smartphones 
and tablet devices that access e-mail via our servers.  Under our current license agreement, this increase 
in the number of devices would have doubled our annual cost due to the current usage of smartphones 
and tablets. 

The City was given the option of transferring to a user platform license instead of the device platform we 
currently have. By making this change, we are able to maintain costs at the current level while covering all
devices under the license agreement.  Essentially, this allows staff to utilize as many devices as they need, 
while being accounted for as one user.  In addition to the user cost, the amount requested includes 
software upgrades for our servers, which will allow our IT Department to replace our outdated server 
software on the Exchange Server (e-mail) and on the SQL Server (databases).  This upgrade will allow

associated with acquiring, maintaining and managing Microsoft software. Through this agreement state 
and local government organizations benefits from special discounts available to very large corporate 
customers. 

The Washington State Department of Enterprise Services (DES) procures the licenses and services on 
our behalf and through our Master Contracts Usage Agreement with DES; we are able to take advantage 
of the discounted rates.  The discount is typically 20%.  

The City of Oak Harbor has an obligation to make sure that every device that uses our servers are 
accounted for and reported to Microsoft.  Each year a true up is conducted and turned over to 
Microsoft.  This year the City was notified that the devices we need to account for include smartphones 
and tablet devices that access e-mail via our servers.  Under our current license agreement, this increase 
in the number of devices would have doubled our annual cost due to the current usage of smartphones 
and tablets. 

The City was given the option of transferring to a user platform license instead of the device platform we 
currently have. By making this change, we are able to maintain costs at the current level while covering all 
devices under the license agreement.  Essentially, this allows staff to utilize as many devices as they need, 
while being accounted for as one user.  In addition to the user cost, the amount requested includes 
software upgrades for our servers, which will allow our IT Department to replace our outdated server 
software on the Exchange Server (e-mail) and on the SQL Server (databases).  This upgrade will allow 

 6.

45



the City to increase e-mail capacity, database storage and provide for some future expansion.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

Funds Required:         $42,265.00
Appropriation Source:             502.30.518.080.4100

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to enter into a contract with Microsoft via the Washington State Department of Enterprise 
Services for a three year subscription to provide the City of Oak Harbor with 170 user software licenses
in the amount of $42,265.00.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Enterprise Enrollment
2. Enterprise Subscription Enrollment Product Selection Form
3. Enterprise Enrollment Sub 250 Program Amendment ID W29

the City to increase e-mail capacity, database storage and provide for some future expansion.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

Funds Required:         $42,265.00
Appropriation Source:             502.30.518.080.4100

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to enter into a contract with Microsoft via the Washington State Department of Enterprise 
Services for a three year subscription to provide the City of Oak Harbor with 170 user software licenses 
in the amount of $42,265.00.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Enterprise Enrollment
2. Enterprise Subscription Enrollment Product Selection Form
3. Enterprise Enrollment Sub 250 Program Amendment ID W293. Enterprise Enrollment Sub 250 Program Amendment ID W29
4. Program Signature Form
3. Enterprise Enrollment Sub 250 Program Amendment ID W29
4. Program Signature Form

46



Enterprise Enrollment State and Local 

Enterprise Enrollment number 
(Microsoft to complete) Proposal ID/Framework ID 

Previous Enrollment number 
(Reseller to complete) 5108359 

Earliest expiring previous 
Enrollment end date 1 12/31/2014 

This Enrollment must be attached to a signature form to be valid. 

This Microsoft Enterprise Enrollment is entered into between the entities as identified in the signature 
form as of the effective date. Enrolled Affiliate represents and warrants it is the same Customer, or an 
Affiliate of the Customer, that entered into the Enterprise Agreement identified on the program 
signature form. 

This Enrollment consists of: (1) these terms and conditions, (2) the terms of the Enterprise Agreement 
identified on the signature form, (3) the Product Selection Form, (4) any supplemental contact 
information form or Previous Agreement/Enrollment form that may be required, (5) any order 
submitted under this Enrollment. This Enrollment may only be entered into under a 2011 or later 
Enterprise Agreement. 

All terms used but not defined are located at http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts. In the 
event of any conflict the terms of this Agreement control. 

Effective date.  If Enrolled Affiliate is renewing Software Assurance or Subscription Licenses from 
one or more previous Enrollments or agreements, then the effective date will be the day after the first 
prior Enrollment or agreement expires or terminates. Otherwise, the effective date will be the date this 
Enrollment is accepted by Microsoft.  Any reference to “anniversary date” refers to the anniversary of 
the effective date each year this Enrollment is in effect. 

Term.  The initial term of this Enrollment will expire on the last day of the month, 36 full calendar 
months from the effective dateof the initial term.  If the Enrollment is renewed, the renewal term will 
expire 36 full calendar months after the effective date of the renewal term. Any reference in this 
Enrollment to "day" will be a calendar day. 

Product order. The Reseller will provide Enrolled Affiliate with Enrolled Affiliate’s Product pricing and 
order. Prices and billing terms for all Products ordered will be determined by agreement between 
Enrolled Affiliate and the Reseller.The Reseller will provide Microsoft with the order separately from 
this Enrollment. 

Terms and Conditions 

1. Definitions.
Terms used but not defined in this Enrollment will have the definition in the Enterprise Agreement. 
The following definitions are used in this Enrollment: 

“Additional Product” means any Product identified as such in the Product List and chosen by Enrolled 
Affiliate under this Enrollment. 

“Enterprise Online Service” means any Online Service designated as an Enterprise Online Service in 
the Product List and chosen by Enrolled Affiliate under this Enrollment.  Enterprise Online Services 
are treated as Online Services, except as noted. 

“Enterprise Product” means any Desktop Platform Product that Microsoft designates as an Enterprise 
Product in the Product List and chosen by Enrolled Affiliate under this Enrollment.  Enterprise 

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 1 of 9 
Document X20-10631 47

http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts


 

Products must be licensed for all Qualified Devices and Qualified Users on an Enterprise-wide basis 
under this program. 

“Expiration Date” means the date upon which the Enrollment expires. 

“Industry Device” (also known as line of business device) means any device that: (1) is not useable in 
its deployed configuration as a general purpose personal computing device (such as a personal 
computer), a multi-function server, or a commercially viable substitute for one of these systems; and 
(2) only employs an industry or task-specific software program (e.g. a computer-aided design program 
used by an architect or a point of sale program) (“Industry Program”).  The device may include 
features and functions derived from Microsoft software or third-party software.  If the device performs 
desktop functions (such as email, word processing, spreadsheets, database, network or Internet 
browsing, or scheduling, or personal finance), then the desktop functions: (1) may only be used for 
the purpose of supporting the Industry Program functionality; and (2) must be technically integrated 
with the Industry Program or employ technically enforced policies or architecture to operate only when 
used with the Industry Program functionality. 

“L&SA” means a License with Software Assurance for any Product ordered. 

“Qualified Device” means any device that is used by or for the benefit of Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise 
and is: (1) a personal desktop computer, portable computer, workstation, or similar device capable of 
running Windows Professional locally (in a physical or virtual operating system environment), OR (2) a 
device used to access a virtual desktop infrastructure (“VDI”)..  Qualified Devices do not includeany 
device that is: (1) designated as a server and not used as a personal computer, OR (2) an Industry 
Device, OR (3) not managed (as defined in the Product List at the start of the applicable initial or 
renewal term of the Enrollment) as part of Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise. At its option, the Enrolled 
Affiliate may designate any device excluded above (e.g., Industry Device) that is used by or for the 
benefit of the Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise as a Qualified Device for all or a subset of Enterprise 
Products or Online Services the Enrolled Affiliate has selected. 

“Qualified User” means a person (e.g., employee, consultant, contingent staff) who: (1) is a user of a 
Qualified Device, or (2) accesses any server software requiring an Enterprise Product Client Access 
License or any Enterprise Online Service.  It does not include a person who accesses server software 
or an Online Service solely under a License identified in the Qualified User exemptions in the Product 
List.  

“Reserved License” means for an Online Service identified as eligible for true-ups in the Product List, 
the License reserved by Enrolled Affiliate prior to use and for which Microsoft will make the Online 
Service available for activation.  

“Transition” means the conversion of one or more License to or from another License(s).  Products 
eligible for Transition and permitted Transitions are identified in the Product List. 

“Transition Period” means the time between the Transition and the next Enrollment anniversary date 
for which the Transition is reported.  

2. Order requirements. 
a. Minimum Order requirements.  Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise must have a minimum of 

250 Qualified Users or Qualified Devices.  The initial order must include at least 250 
Licenses for Enterprise Products or Enterprise Online Services. 

(i) Enterprise Commitment. If ordering any Enterprise Products, Enrolled Affiliate’s 
order must include coverage for all Qualified Users or Qualified Devices, depending 
on the License Type, of one or more Enterprise Products or a mix of Enterprise 
Products and the corresponding Enterprise Online Services.  

(ii) Enterprise Online Services.  If ordering Enterprise Online Services only, then 
Enrolled Affiliate must maintain at least 250 Subscription Licenses. 

b. Additional Products. Upon satisfying the minimum order requirements above, Enrolled 
Affiliate may order Additional Products and Services. 

c. Product Use Rights for Enterprise Products. For Enterprise Products, if a new Product 
version has more restrictive use rights than the version that is current at the start of the 

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 2 of 9 
Document X20-10631 

 
 48



 

applicable initial or renewal term of the Enrollment, those more restrictive use rights will 
not apply to Enrolled Affiliate’s use of that Product during that term. 

d. Country of usage.  Enrolled Affiliate must specify the countries where Licenses will be 
used on its initial order and on any additional orders. 

e. Adding Products. 

(i) Adding new Products not previously ordered. Enrolled Affiliate may add new 
Enterprise Products by entering into a new Enrollment or as part of a renewal.  New 
Enterprise Online Services may be added by contacting a Microsoft Account Manager 
or Reseller.  New Additional Products, other than Online Services, may be used if an 
order is placed in the month the Product is first used.  For Additional Products that 
are Online Services, an initial order for the Online Service is required prior to use.  

(ii) Adding Licenses for previously ordered Products.  Additional Licenses for 
previously ordered Products must be included in the next true-up order.  Enrolled Affiliate must 
purchase Services and Licenses for Online Services prior to use, unless the Online 
Services are (1) identified as eligible for true-up in the Product List or (2) included as 
part of other Licenses (e.g., Enterprise CAL).   

f. True-up requirements. 

(i) True-up order.  Enrolled Affiliate must submit an annual true-up order that accounts 
for changes since the initial order or last true-up order, including: (1) any increase in 
Licenses, including any increase in Qualified Devices or Qualified Users and 
Reserved Licenses; (2) Transitions (if permitted); or (3)  Subscription License quantity 
reductions (if permitted).  Microsoft, at its discretion, may validate the customer true-
up data submitted through a formal product deployment assessment using an 
approved Microsoft partner. 

(ii) Enterprise Products. Enrolled Affiliate must determine the number of Qualified 
Devices and Qualified Users (if ordering user-based Licenses) at the time the true-up 
order is placed and must order additional Licenses for all Qualified Devices and 
Qualified Users that are not already covered by existing Licenses, including any 
Enterprise Online Services. 

(iii) Additional Products.  For Products that have been previously ordered, Enrolled 
Affiliate must determine the Additional Products used and order the License 
difference (if any). 

(iv) Online Services.  For Online Services identified as eligible for true-up orders in the 
Product List, Enrolled Affiliate may first reserve the additional Licenses prior to use.  
Microsoft will provide a report of Reserved Licenses in excess of existing orders to 
Enrolled Affiliate and its Reseller.  Reserved Licenses will be invoiced retroactively for 
the prior year based upon the month in which they were reserved. 

(v) Transitions.  Enrolled Affiliate must report all Transitions.  Transitions may result in 
an increase in Licenses to be included on the true-up order and a reduction of 
Licenses for prior orders.  Reductions in Licenses will be effective at end of the 
Transition Period.  Associated invoices will also reflect this change. For Licenses paid 
upfront, Microsoft will issue a credit for the remaining months of Software Assurance 
or Subscription Licenses thatwere reduced as part of the Transition. 

(vi) True-up due date.  The true-up order must be received by Microsoft between 60 and 
30 days prior to the Enrollment anniversary date.  The third-year anniversary true-up 
order is due within 30 days prior to the Expiration Date.  Enrolled Affiliate may true-up 
more often than at each Enrollment anniversary date except for Subscription License 
reductions. 

(vii) Late true-up order. If the true-up order is not received when due: 

1) Microsoft will invoice Reseller for all Reserved Licenses not previously ordered.  

2) Transitions and Subscription License reductions cannot be reported until the 
following Enrollment anniversary date (or at Enrollment renewal, as applicable).  

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 3 of 9 
Document X20-10631 

 
 49



 

(viii) Subscription License reductions.  Enrolled Affiliate may reduce the quantity of 
Subscription Licenses on a prospective basis if permitted  in the Product List as 
follows:  

1) For Subscription Licenses part of an Enterprise-wide purchase, Licenses may be 
reduced if the total quantity of Licenses and Software Assurance for an applicable 
group meets or exceeds the quantity of Qualified Devices identified on the 
Product Selection Form.  Step-up Licenses do not count towards this total count. 

2) For Enterprise Online Services not a part of an Enterprise-wide purchase, 
Licenses can be reduced as long as the initial order minimum requirements are 
maintained. 

3) For Additional Products available as Subscription Licenses, Enrolled Affiliate may 
reduce the Licenses.  If the License count is reduced to zero, then Enrolled 
Affiliate’s use of the applicable Subscription License will be cancelled. 

Invoices will be adjusted to reflect any reductions in Subscription Licenses at the true-
up order Enrollment anniversary date and effective as of such date.  

(ix) Update statement.  An update statement must be submitted instead of a true-up 
order if, as of the initial order or last true-up order, Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise has 
not: (1) changed the number of Qualified Devices and Qualified Users licensed with 
Enterprise Products or Enterprise Online Services; and (2) increased its usage of 
Additional Products.  This update statement must be signed by Enrolled Affiliate’s 
authorized representative.  The update statement must be received by Microsoft 
between 60 and 30 days prior to the Enrollment anniversary date.  The last update 
statement is due within 30 days prior to the  Expiration Date. 

g. Step-up Licenses. For Licenses eligible for a step-up under this Enrollment, Enrolled 
Affiliate may step-up to a higher edition or suite as follows:   

(i) For step-up Licenses included on an initial order, Enrolled Affiliate may order 
according to the true-up process. 

(ii) If step-up Licenses are not included on an initial order, Enrolled Affiliate may step-up 
initially by following the process described in the Section titled “Adding new Products 
not previously ordered,” then for additional step-up Licenses, by following the true-up 
order process. 

(iii) If Enrolled Affiliate has previously ordered an Online Service as an Additional Product 
and wants to step-up to an Enterprise Online Service eligible for a Transition, the 
step-up may be reported as a Transition. 

(iv) If Enrolled Affiliate Transitions a License, it may be able to further step-up the 
Transitioned License.  If Enrolled Affiliate chooses to step-up and the step-up License 
is separately eligible to be Transitioned, such step-up Licenses may result in a 
License reduction at the Enrollment anniversary date following the step-up. 

h. Clerical errors.  Microsoft may correct clerical errors in this Enrollment, and any 
documents submitted with or under this Enrollment, by providing notice by email and a 
reasonable opportunity for Enrolled Affiliate to object to the correction.  Clerical errors 
include minor mistakes, unintentional additions and omissions.  This provision does not 
apply to material terms, such as the identity, quantity or price of a Product ordered. 

3. Pricing. 
a. Price Levels.  For both the initial and any renewal term Enrolled Affiliate’s Price Level for 

all Products ordered under this Enrollment will be Level “D” throughout the term of the 
Enrollment.  Price Level’s will be captured in the Product Selection Form.  

b. Setting Prices.  Enrolled Affiliate’s prices for each Product will be established by its 
Reseller.  As long as Enrolled Affiliate continues to qualify for the same price level, 
Microsoft’s prices for Resellers for each Product or Service will be fixed throughout the 
applicable initial or renewal Enrollment term. However, if Enrolled Affiliate qualifies for a 
different price level, Microsoft will establish a new price level for future new orders either 

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 4 of 9 
Document X20-10631 

 
 50



 

upon Enrolled Affiliate’s request or on its own initiative. Any changes will be based upon 
price level rules in the Product Selection Form.  

4. Payment terms. 
For the initial or renewal order, Enrolled Affiliate may pay upfront or elect to spread its payments over 
the applicable Enrollment term. If spread payments are elected, unless indicated otherwise, Microsoft 
will invoice Enrolled Affiliate’s Reseller in three equal annual installments.  The first installment will be 
invoiced upon Microsoft’s acceptance of this Enrollment and on each Enrollment anniversary date. 
Subsequent orders are invoiced upon acceptance of the order and Enrolled Affiliate may elect to pay 
annually or upfront for Online Services and upfront for all other Licenses. 

5. Transitions. 
a. Transition requirements. 

(i) Licenses with active Software Assurance or Subscription Licenses may be 
Transitioned at any time if permitted in the Product List.  Enrolled Affiliate may not, 
however, reduce the quantity of Licenses or associated Software Assurance prior to 
the end of the Transition Period. 

(ii) Enrolled Affiliate must order the Licenses to which it is transitioning for the year(s) 
following the Transition Period. 

(iii) If a Transition is made back to a License that had active Software Assurance as of 
the date of Transition, then Software Assurance must be re-ordered for all such 
Licenses on a prospective basis following the Transition Period.  Software Assurance 
coverage may not exceed the quantity of perpetual Licenses for which Software 
Assurance was current at the time of any prior Transition.  Software Assurance may 
not be applied to Licenses transferred by Enrolled Affiliate. 

(iv) If a device-based License is Transitioned to a user-based License, all users of the 
device must be licensed as part of the Transition. 

(v) If a user-based License is Transitioned to a device-based License, all devices 
accessed by the user must be licensed as part of the Transition. 

b. Effect of Transition on Licenses.  

(i) Transition will not affect Enrolled Affiliate’s rights in perpetual Licenses paid in full.   

(ii) New version rights will be granted for perpetual Licenses covered by Software 
Assurance up to the end of the Transition Period.  

(iii) For L&SA not paid in full at the end of the Transition Period, Enrolled Affiliate will 
have perpetual Licenses for a proportional amount equal to the amounts paid for the 
Transitioned Product as of the end of the Transition Period.   

(iv) For L&SA not paid in full or granted a perpetual License in accordance with the above 
or Subscription Licenses, all rights to Transitioned Licenses cease at the end of the 
Transition Period.  

6. End of Enrollment term and termination. 
a. General. At the Expiration Date, Enrolled Affiliate must immediately order and pay for 

Licenses for Products it has used but has not previously submitted an order, except as 
otherwise provided in this Enrollment.   

b. Renewal Option.  At the Expiration Date of the initial term, Enrolled Affiliate can renew 
Products by renewing the Enrollment for one additional 36 full calendar month term or 
signing a new Enrollment.  Microsoft must receive a Product Selection Form and renewal 
order prior to or at the Expiration Date. The renewal term will start on the day following 
the Expiration Date. Microsoft will not unreasonably reject any renewal. Microsoft may 

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 5 of 9 
Document X20-10631 

 
 51



 

make changes to this program that will make it necessary for Customer and its Enrolled 
Affiliates to enter into new agreements and Enrollments at renewal. 

c. If Enrolled Affiliate elects not to renew. 

(i) Software Assurance. If Enrolled Affiliate elects not to renew Software Assurance for 
any Product under its Enrollment, then Enrolled Affiliate will not be permitted to order 
Software Assurance later without first acquiring L&SA.  

(ii) Online Services eligible for an Extended Term.  For Online Services identified as 
eligible for an Extended Term in the Product List, the following options are available 
at the end of the Enrollment initial or renewal term.   
1) Extended Term. Licenses for Online Services will automatically expire in 

accordance with the terms of the Enrollment. An extended term feature that 
allows Online Services to continue month-to-month (“Extended Term”) is 
available.  During the Extended Term, Online Services will be invoiced monthly at 
the then-current published price for Enrolled Affiliate’s price level as of the 
Expiration Date plus a 3% administrative fee for up to one year. If Enrolled 
Affiliate does want an Extended Term, Resellermust submit a request to 
Microsoft. Microsoft must receive the request not less than 30 days prior to the 
Expiration Date.   

2) Cancellation during Extended Term. If Enrolled Affiliate has opted for the 
Extended Term and later determines not to continue with the Extended Term, 
Resellermust submit a notice of cancellation for each Online Service.  
Cancellation will be effective at the end of the month following 30 days after 
Microsoft has received the notice. 

(iii) Subscription Licenses and Online Services not eligible for an Extended Term.  
If Enrolled Affiliate elects not to renew, the Licenses will be cancelled and will 
terminate as of the Expiration Date. Any associated media must be uninstalled and 
destroyed and Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise must discontinue use.  Microsoft may 
request written certification to verify compliance. 

(iv) Customer Data. Upon expiration or termination of a License for Online Services, 
Microsoft will keep Customer’s Data in a limited function account for 90 days so that 
Customer may extract it.  Enrolled Affiliate will reimburse Microsoft if there are any 
associated costs.  After 90 days Microsoft will disable Enrolled Affiliate’s account and 
will delete its Customer Data. Enrolled Affiliate agrees that, other than as described 
above, Microsoft has no obligation to continue to hold, export or return Enrolled 
Affiliate’s Customer Data and that Microsoft has no liability whatsoever for deletion of 
Enrolled Affiliate’s Customer Data pursuant to these terms. 

d. Termination for cause. Any termination for cause of this Enrollment will be subject to the 
“Termination for cause” section of the Agreement. 

e. Early termination. Any Early termination of this Enrollment will be subject to the “Early 
Termination” Section of the Enterprise Agreement. 

For Subscription Licenses, in the event of a breach by Microsoft, Microsoft will issue 
Reseller a credit for any amount paid in advance that would apply after the date of 
termination. 

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 6 of 9 
Document X20-10631 

 
 52



 

Enrollment Details 

1. Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise. 
a. Identify which Agency Affiliates are included in the Enterprise. (Required)  Enrolled 

Affiliate’s Enterprise must consist of entire offices, bureaus, agencies, departments or 
other entities of Enrolled Affiliate, not partial offices, bureaus, agencies, or departments, 
or other partial entities.  Enrolled Affiliate’s organization includes .  
Check only one box in this section. If no boxes are checked, Microsoft will deem the 
Enterprise to include the Enrolled Affiliate only. If more than one box is checked, 
Microsoft will deem the Enterprise to include the largest number of Affiliates:  

  Enrolled Affiliate only 

 Enrolled Affiliate and the following Affiliate(s) (Only identify specific affiliates to be 
included if fewer than all Affiliates are to be included in the Enterprise): 

      

      

      

      

      

  Enrolled Affiliate and all Affiliates, with following Affiliate(s) excluded: 

      

      

      

      

      

b. Please indicate whether the Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise will include all new Affiliates 
acquired after the start of this Enrollment: Check only one box in this section:  

  Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise will include all new Affiliates acquired after the start of this 
Enrollment 

  Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise will not include all new Affiliates acquired after the start of 
this Enrollment 
If no selection is made, or if both boxes are checked, Microsoft will deem the Enterprise to 
include all future Affiliates  

2. Contact information. 
Each party will notify the other in writing if any of the information in the following contact information 
page(s) changes.  The asterisks (*) indicate required fields.  By providing contact information, Enrolled 
Affiliate consents to its use for purposes of administering this Enrollment by Microsoft, its Affiliates, 
and other parties that help administer this Enrollment.  The personal information provided in 
connection with this Enrollment will be used and protected in accordance with the privacy statement 
available at https://www.microsoft.com/licensing/servicecenter. 

a. Primary contact.  This contact is the primary contact for the Enrollment from within 
Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise.  This contact is also an Online Administrator for the Volume 
Licensing Service Center and may grant online access to others. The primary contact will 
be the default contact for all purposes unless separate contacts are identified for specific 
purposes 

Name of entity (must be legal entity name)*       
Contact name* First        Last       
Contact email address*       
Street address*       

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 7 of 9 
Document X20-10631 

 
 53

https://www.microsoft.com/licensing/servicecenter


 

City*       
State/Province*       
Postal code*      -      
(For U.S. addresses, please provide the zip + 4, e.g. xxxxx-xxxx) 
Country*       
Phone*       
Tax ID       
* indicates required fields 

b. Notices contact and Online Administrator. This contact (1) receives the contractual 
notices, (2) is the Online Administrator for the Volume Licensing Service Center and may 
grant online access to others, and (3) is authorized for applicable Online Services to add 
or reassign Licenses, step-up, and initiate Transitions prior to a true-up order. 

  Same as primary contact (default if no information is provided below, even if the box 
is not checked). 

Contact name* First        Last       
Contact email address*       
Street address*       
City*         
State/Province*         
Postal code*      -        
(For U.S. addresses, please provide the zip + 4, e.g. xxxxx-xxxx) 
Country*       
Phone*       
Language preference.  Choose the language for notices.  English 

  This contact is a third party (not the Enrolled Affiliate).  Warning: This contact receives 
personally identifiable information of the Customer and its Affiliates. 
* indicates required fields 

c. Online Services Manager. This contact is authorized to manage the Online Services 
ordered under the Enrollment and (for applicable Online Services) to add or reassign 
Licenses, step-up, and initiate Transitions prior to a true-up order. 

  Same as notices contact and Online Administrator (default if no information is 
provided below, even if box is not checked) 

Contact name*: First        Last       
Contact email address*       
Phone*       

 This contact is from a third party organization (not the entity).  Warning:  This contact 
receives personally identifiable information of the entity. 
* indicates required fields 

d. Reseller information.  Reseller contact for this Enrollment is: 

Reseller company name*       
Street address (PO boxes will not be accepted)*       
City*         
State/Province*         
Postal code*       
Country*       
Contact name*       
Phone*       
Contact email address*       
* indicates required fields 

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 8 of 9 
Document X20-10631 

 
 54



 

By signing below, the Reseller identified above confirms that all information provided in 
this Enrollment is correct. 

Signature* 

Printed name*       
Printed title*       
Date*       

* indicates required fields 

Changing a Reseller.  If Microsoft or the Reseller chooses to discontinue doing business 
with each other, Enrolled Affiliate must choose a replacement Reseller.  If Enrolled 
Affiliate or the Reseller intends to terminate their relationship, the initiating party must 
notify Microsoft and the other party using a form provided by Microsoft at least 90 days 
prior to the date on which the change is to take effect. 

e. If Enrolled Affiliate requires a separate contact for any of the following, attach the 
Supplemental Contact Information form.  Otherwise, the notices contact and Online 
Administrator remains the default. 

(i) Additional notices contact 
(ii) Software Assurance manager 
(iii) Subscriptions manager 
(iv) Customer Support Manager (CSM) contact 

3. Financing elections. 
Is a purchase under this Enrollment being financed through MS Financing?   No 

If a purchase under this Enrollment is financed through MS Financing, and Enrolled Affiliate chooses 
not to finance any associated taxes, it must pay these taxes directly to Microsoft Corporation. 

EA2013EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 9 of 9 
Document X20-10631 

 
 55



 

Enterprise and Enterprise Subscription Enrollment Product 
Selection Form – State and Local 

Enrollment Number 
Microsoft to complete for initial term 

Reseller to complete for renewal 
      

Step 1. Please indicate whether Enrolled Affiliate is ordering Enterprise Products or Enterprise 
Online Services on the initial enrollment order. Choose both if applicable.  

 Enterprise Products.  Choose platform option:  Enterprise Desktop 

Qualified Devices: 170 Qualified Users: 170 

 Enterprise Online Services1 

Step 2. Select the Products and Quantities Enrolled Affiliate is ordering on its initial Enrollment 
Order. Quantity may not include any Licenses which Enrolled Affiliate has selected for optional 
future use, or to which it is transitioning or stepping up within enrollment term.  Products for which 
the Enrolled Affiliate has an option to transition or step-up should be listed in Step 3.  

Products2 Quantity 
Office Professional Plus 
 Office Pro Plus 170 
 Office Pro Plus for Office 365       
Office 365 Plans1 
 Office 365 (Plan E1)       
 Office 365 (Plan E2)       
 Office 365 (Plan E3)       
 Office 365 (Plan E4)       
Client Access License (CAL).  Choose 1 Option. 
  Core CAL, including Bridge CAL’s (if applicable) 
 Core CAL       
 Core CAL Bridge for Office 365       
 Core CAL Bridge for Windows Intune       
 Core CAL Bridge for Office 365 and Windows Intune       
  Enterprise CAL  (ECAL)  
 ECAL   170 
 ECAL Bridge for Office 365       
 ECAL Bridge for Windows Intune       
 ECAL Bridge for Office 365 and Windows Intune       
The Client Access License selection must be the same across the Enterprise. Specify whether 
licensing CAL per Device or User: User 
Windows Desktop 
 Windows OS Upgrade 170 
 Windows VDA       
Windows Intone 
 Windows Intune       
 Windows Intune Add-on3       
Other Enterprise Products 
 Microsoft Desktop Optimization Pack (MDOP)4       

EA-EASProdSelForm(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2012) Page 1 of 2 
Document X20-03622 

 56



 

If selecting Windows Desktop or Windows Intune option, Enrolled Affiliate acknowledges the 
following: 

a. The Windows Desktop Operating System Upgrade licenses offered through this Enrollment 
are not full licenses. The Enrolled Affiliate and any included Affiliates have qualifying 
operating system licenses for all devices on which the Windows Desktop Operating System 
Upgrade or Windows Intune licenses are run. 

b. In order to use a third party to reimage the Windows Operating System Upgrade, Enrolled 
Affiliate must certify that Enrolled Affiliate has acquired qualifying operating system licenses. 
See the Product List for details.  

Step 3. Indicate new Enterprise Products and Online Services Enrolled Affiliate has selected for 
optional future use where not selected on the initial enrollment order (above):  

Products2 
 Office Pro Plus for Office 365 
 Office 365 (Plan E1) 
 Office 365 (Plan E2) 
 Office 365 (Plan E3) 
 Office 365 (Plan E4) 
 Enterprise CAL (ECAL) Step-up, including Bridge CALs 
 Windows Intune 
 Windows Intune Add-on3 

 

 
 

This form must be attached to a signature form to be valid. 

EA-EASProdSelForm(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2012) Page 2 of 2 
Document X20-03622 

 57



 

Enterprise Enrollment 
Sub 250 Program 
Amendment ID W29 

Proposal ID 

This amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into between the parties identified on the attached 
program signature form. It amends the Enrollment or Agreement identified above.  All terms used but 
not defined in this Amendment will have the same meanings provided in that Enrollment or 
Agreement. 

The parties agree that the Enrollment is amended as follows: 

1. On the first page of the Enrollment, the following is added after the 
second paragraph: 

By entering into this Enrollment, the Enrolled Affiliate agrees that (1) it also has 250 or more Qualified 
Devices or Qualified Users; or (2) as a condition of entering into this Enrollment with 25-249 Qualified 
Devices or Qualified Users, Enrolled Affiliate has elected not to receive CD ROMs as part of the 
Enrollment and therefore no CD ROMs will automatically be shipped.  If Enrolled Affiliate is enrolling 
with 25-249 Qualified Devices or Qualified Users and it would like to receive CD ROM Kits and 
updates, Enrolled Affiliate may order these through its Reseller for a fee. 

The submission of this Amendment can only be placed against a 2011 Enterprise Agreement or an 
Enrollment that has the Updated EA Amendment terms and conditions applied. The submittal of this 
Amendment may not be contingent on submittal of a new Enterprise Agreement. 

2. Section 2a of the Enrollment titled “Order Requirements”, is 
hereby amended and restated in its entirety with the following: 
a. Minimum Order Requirements.  Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise must have a minimum of 

25 Qualified Users or Qualified Devices. 

(i) Initial Order.  Initial order must include at least 25 Licenses from one of the four 
groups outlined in the Product Selection Form. 

(ii) If choosing Enterprise Products.  If choosing Enterprise Products in a specific 
group outlined in the Product Selection Form, Enrolled Affiliate’s initial order must 
include an Enterprise-wide selection of one or more Enterprise Products or a mix of 
Enterprise Products and corresponding Enterprise Online Services for that group. 

(iii) Additional Products. Upon satisfying the minimum order requirements above, 
Enrolled Affiliate may order Additional Products. 

(iv) Country of Usage.  Enrolled Affiliate must specify the countries where Licenses will 
be used on its initial order and on any additional orders. 

3. Software Assurance renewal. 

Renewing Software Assurance:  If Enrolled Affiliate will be renewing Products 
Software Assurance coverage from a separate agreement, check this box.  

By checking the above box, a new section is added to the Enrollment entitled “Software Assurance 
addition.” 

EAEnrAmend(Sub250)(Ind)(ENG)(Apr2014) Sub 250 Enterprise Enrollment 
W29 

W 
Page 1 of 3 

 58



 

Enrolled Affiliate is permitted to and will include in its initial order under this Enrollment Software 
Assurance quantities from eligible Program’s identified in the table below, even though Enrolled 
Affiliate is not otherwise eligible to order such Software Assurance without simultaneously ordering a 
License. 

Enrolled Affiliate agrees that any perpetual Licenses received through the New Software Assurance 
shall supersede and replace the underlying Licenses, and the underlying Licenses are not to be 
transferred separately from any Licenses received through the New Software Assurance. Any 
remaining payment obligations with respect to the underlying Licenses shall continue in effect. 

Program License ID Number Expiration Date 
                  
                  
                  
                  

Except for changes made by this Amendment, the Enrollment or Agreement identified above remains 
unchanged and in full force and effect. If there is any conflict between any provision in this 
Amendment and any provision in the Enrollment or Agreement identified above, this Amendment shall 
control. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Amendment must be attached to a signature form to be valid. 

EAEnrAmend(Sub250)(Ind)(ENG)(Apr2014) Sub 250 Enterprise Enrollment 
W29 

W 
Page 2 of 3 

 59



 

 

EAEnrAmend(Sub250)(Ind)(ENG)(Apr2014) Sub 250 Enterprise Enrollment 
W29 

W 
Page 3 of 3 

 60



 

Program Signature Form 

MBA/MBSA number       
 

      

Agreement number 01E73529 
  

Note:  Enter the applicable active numbers associated with the documents below.  Microsoft 
requires the associated active number be indicated here, or listed below as new. 

 

For the purposes of this form, “Customer” can mean the signing entity, Enrolled Affiliate, 
Government Partner, Institution, or other party entering into a volume licensing program 
agreement. 

This signature form and all contract documents identified in the table below are entered into between 
the Customer and the Microsoft Affiliate signing, as of the effective date identified below. 

Contract Document Number or Code 
<Choose Agreement>       
<Choose Agreement>       
<Choose Agreement>       
<Choose Agreement>       
<Choose Agreement>       
Enterprise Enrollment X20-10631 
<Choose Enrollment/Registration>       
<Choose Enrollment/Registration>       
<Choose Enrollment/Registration>       
<Choose Enrollment/Registration>       
EA Product Selection Form X20-03622 
Amendment  W29 
            
            
            

By signing below, Customer and the Microsoft Affiliate agree that both parties (1) have received, read 
and understand the above contract documents, including any websites or documents incorporated by 
reference and any amendments and (2) agree to be bound by the terms of all such documents. 

Customer 

Name of Entity (must be legal entity name)* City of Oak Harbor 

Signature*  

Printed First and Last Name*       

Printed Title       

Signature Date*       

Tax ID       

* indicates required field 

ProgramSignForm(MSSign)(NA,LatAm)ExBRA,MLI(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 1 of 2 
 

 61



 

Microsoft Affiliate 

Microsoft Corporation 

Signature   

Printed First and Last Name       

Printed Title       

Signature Date       
(date Microsoft Affiliate countersigns) 

Agreement Effective Date       
(may be different than Microsoft’s signature date) 

Optional 2nd Customer signature or Outsourcer signature (if applicable) 

Customer 

Name of Entity (must be legal entity name)*       

Signature*  

Printed First and Last Name*       

Printed Title       

Signature Date*       

* indicates required field 

Outsourcer 

Name of Entity (must be legal entity name)*       

Signature*  

Printed First and Last Name*       

Printed Title       

Signature Date*       

* indicates required field 

If Customer requires physical media, additional contacts, or is reporting multiple previous Enrollments, 
include the appropriate form(s) with this signature form. 

After this signature form is signed by the Customer, send it and the Contract Documents to 
Customer’s channel partner or Microsoft account manager, who must submit them to the following 
address.  When the signature form is fully executed by Microsoft, Customer will receive a confirmation 
copy. 

Microsoft Corporation 
Dept. 551, Volume Licensing 
6100 Neil Road, Suite 210 
Reno, Nevada 89511-1137 
USA 

ProgramSignForm(MSSign)(NA,LatAm)ExBRA,MLI(ENG)(Aug2014) Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 62



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. g.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Final Contract Voucher 
Certificate for the Public Works 
Truck Scale.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill recommends final acceptance of C. Johnson Construction’s work on the Public Works 
Truck Scale Project.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
On June 3, 2014, City Council approved a construction contract with C. Johnson Construction, Inc. to 
install a new truck scale at the City of Oak Harbor, Public Works Shops in the amount of $111,822.95.  

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. g.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Final Contract Voucher 
Certificate for the Public Works 
Truck Scale.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill recommends final acceptance of C. Johnson Construction’s work on the Public Works 
Truck Scale Project.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
On June 3, 2014, City Council approved a construction contract with C. Johnson Construction, Inc. to 
install a new truck scale at the City of Oak Harbor, Public Works Shops in the amount of $111,822.95.  install a new truck scale at the City of Oak Harbor, Public Works Shops in the amount of $111,822.95.  
Work was successfully completed in October, 2014 at a total construction cost of $111,822.95.

The attached Final Contract Voucher Certification formally closes the contract with C. Johnson 
Construction, Inc. for work on the project.

No Change Orders were issued on the project.

Other services normally associated with a construction project (such as construction management, survey, 
design, etc.) were either performed in house or by the contractor.  Only an incidental cost of $2,214.20 
for materials testing was charged to the project.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required:                     $0
Appropriation Source: 401/402/403/404  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
June 3, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a contract with C Johnson Construction, Inc. 
in the amount of $111,822.95 and authorized the City Engineer to administratively approve changes to 
the construction contract totaling not more than $10,064.00.

March 4, 2014 - City Council passed a motion to reject all bids received on February 4 , 2014 for the 

install a new truck scale at the City of Oak Harbor, Public Works Shops in the amount of $111,822.95.  
Work was successfully completed in October, 2014 at a total construction cost of $111,822.95.

The attached Final Contract Voucher Certification formally closes the contract with C. Johnson 
Construction, Inc. for work on the project.

No Change Orders were issued on the project.

Other services normally associated with a construction project (such as construction management, survey, 
design, etc.) were either performed in house or by the contractor.  Only an incidental cost of $2,214.20 
for materials testing was charged to the project.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required:                     $0
Appropriation Source: 401/402/403/404  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
June 3, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a contract with C Johnson Construction, Inc. 
in the amount of $111,822.95 and authorized the City Engineer to administratively approve changes to 
the construction contract totaling not more than $10,064.00.

March 4, 2014 - City Council passed a motion to reject all bids received on February 4 , 2014 for the 

 6.

63



 

March 4, 2014 - City Council passed a motion to reject all bids received on February 4th, 2014 for the 
Shallow Pit Truck Scale and to re-advertise after modification of the bidding documents.
 
August 7, 2013 - City Council authorized staff to solicit bids for a new shallow pit truck scale to be 
installed at the public works yard and used by the solid waste department.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
No discussed at a Council Workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the Public Works Truck Scale 
Project with C Johnson Construction, Inc.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Certification

 

March 4, 2014 - City Council passed a motion to reject all bids received on February 4th, 2014 for the 
Shallow Pit Truck Scale and to re-advertise after modification of the bidding documents.
 
August 7, 2013 - City Council authorized staff to solicit bids for a new shallow pit truck scale to be 
installed at the public works yard and used by the solid waste department.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
No discussed at a Council Workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the Public Works Truck Scale 
Project with C Johnson Construction, Inc.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Certification

64



65



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. h.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Final Contract Voucher 
Certificate for the 42-inch 
Stormwater Outfall at 
Windjammer Park.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill recommends final acceptance of Strider Construction’s work on the 42-inch Outfall 
Construction Project.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
On June 3, 2014, City Council approved a construction contract with Strider Construction to replace the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. h.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Final Contract Voucher 
Certificate for the 42-inch 
Stormwater Outfall at 
Windjammer Park.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill recommends final acceptance of Strider Construction’s work on the 42-inch Outfall 
Construction Project.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
On June 3, 2014, City Council approved a construction contract with Strider Construction to replace the On June 3, 2014, City Council approved a construction contract with Strider Construction to replace the 
aging westerly 42-inch outfall in Windjammer Park in the amount of $727,637.80.  Staff has inspected 

the work and considered it complete on October 8th, 2014.  The final contract amount with Strider 
Construction at the completion of work was $690,964.59 including tax.

Two change orders were issued during the course of construction resulting from various efficiencies 
identified during construction which reduced the total contract amount by $36,673.21.

The attached Final Contract Voucher Certification formally closes the contract with Strider Construction
for work on the project.

Remaining open contracts associated with the project include the following:

Final invoicing and closeout is expected on these professional service agreements by the end of the year
(2014).

Professional Service Vendor Current Authorized 
Contract Maximum

Estimated Final Amount

Archaeology ERCI $248,732.51 $248,732.51
Construction Management KBA $121,500.00 $65,000.00
Engineering Design & 
Permitting

Moffat & Nichol $225,466.20 $167,000.00

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

On June 3, 2014, City Council approved a construction contract with Strider Construction to replace the 
aging westerly 42-inch outfall in Windjammer Park in the amount of $727,637.80.  Staff has inspected 

the work and considered it complete on October 8th, 2014.  The final contract amount with Strider 
Construction at the completion of work was $690,964.59 including tax.

Two change orders were issued during the course of construction resulting from various efficiencies 
identified during construction which reduced the total contract amount by $36,673.21.

The attached Final Contract Voucher Certification formally closes the contract with Strider Construction 
for work on the project.

Remaining open contracts associated with the project include the following:

Final invoicing and closeout is expected on these professional service agreements by the end of the year 
(2014).

Professional Service Vendor Current Authorized 
Contract Maximum

Estimated Final Amount

Archaeology ERCI $248,732.51 $248,732.51
Construction Management KBA $121,500.00 $65,000.00
Engineering Design & 
Permitting

Moffat & Nichol $225,466.20 $167,000.00

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

 6.

66



FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required: $0
Appropriation Source: Stormwater Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
June 3, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a contract with Strider Construction in the 
amount of $727,637.80 and authorized the City Engineer to administratively approve change orders to 
the construction contract totaling not more than $72,764.00
 
April 15, 2014 – City Council authorized staff to proceed with advertisement of the 42” Stormwater 
Outfall Repair at Windjammer Park Project for competitive bidding.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item has not been discussed at a City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the 42-inch Outfall project with 
Strider Construction. 

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Cert - Windjammer Outfall

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required: $0
Appropriation Source: Stormwater Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
June 3, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a contract with Strider Construction in the 
amount of $727,637.80 and authorized the City Engineer to administratively approve change orders to 
the construction contract totaling not more than $72,764.00
 
April 15, 2014 – City Council authorized staff to proceed with advertisement of the 42” Stormwater 
Outfall Repair at Windjammer Park Project for competitive bidding.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item has not been discussed at a City Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the 42-inch Outfall project with 
Strider Construction. 

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Cert - Windjammer Outfall
ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Cert - Windjammer Outfall
ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Cert - Windjammer Outfall

67



68



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. i.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Leave a Book/Take a 
Book Program at Windjammer 
Park.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to establish a 'Leave a Book/Take a Book' program at Windjammer 
Park near the Teacher's Tribute Garden.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
At their October 13, 2014 meeting, the City of Oak Harbor Park Board was presented a proposal from
Bob and Rhonda Severns to construct a 'Leave a Book/Take a Book' box near the Teacher's Tribute 
Garden at Windjammer Park.  This would be part of a book sharing program, and would tie in with the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. i.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Leave a Book/Take a 
Book Program at Windjammer 
Park.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to establish a 'Leave a Book/Take a Book' program at Windjammer 
Park near the Teacher's Tribute Garden.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
At their October 13, 2014 meeting, the City of Oak Harbor Park Board was presented a proposal from 
Bob and Rhonda Severns to construct a 'Leave a Book/Take a Book' box near the Teacher's Tribute 
Garden at Windjammer Park.  This would be part of a book sharing program, and would tie in with the Garden at Windjammer Park.  This would be part of a book sharing program, and would tie in with the 
tribute to the former Oak Harbor High School English teachers.  The Park Board approved this proposal
and voted to forward their recommendation to City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council approve the 'Leave a Book/Take a Book' box, as part of a 
book sharing program, to be constructed near the Teacher's Tribute Garden at Windjammer Park.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Park Board Notes 10/13/14

Garden at Windjammer Park.  This would be part of a book sharing program, and would tie in with the 
tribute to the former Oak Harbor High School English teachers.  The Park Board approved this proposal 
and voted to forward their recommendation to City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council approve the 'Leave a Book/Take a Book' box, as part of a 
book sharing program, to be constructed near the Teacher's Tribute Garden at Windjammer Park.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Park Board Notes 10/13/14

 6.

69



70



OAK HARBOR PARK BOARD 
Monday, October 13, 2014, 11:30 a.m. 
Public Works Facility Conference Room 
1400 NE 16th Avenue 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
(360) 279-4750 

NOTES 

1. Call to Order/Approval of Meeting Notes (September 8, 2014)
Park Board members in attendance were Mike Wright, K.C. Pohtilla and Daisy Sapida.  Erica
Wasinger was unavailable.  Melissa Riker and Dee Harbour were absent.  Also in attendance
were Joel Servatius, City Council Ex-Officio Member, and staff members Hank Nydam, Cac
Kamak, Brad Gluth and Debbie Mueller.  Also in attendance was Skip Pohtilla.

Mike Wright called the meeting to order.  There were no changes to the September 8 meeting 
notes. 

2. Boyer Property Oak Tree Planting Project Update
Hank introduced Brad Gluth, the City’s Civil Engineer.  Brad explained a proposal to establish
a Garry oak grove on 18 acres of City owned property, commonly known as the Boyer
Property, located at the corner of SR 20 and Fakkema Road.  The land lies within Aviation
Environs (AE) Accident Potential Subdistricts 1 and/or 2, is subject to a restrictive easement
and is zoned as open space.  These encumbrances severely restrict the land use to those such as
agriculture or wildlife habitat.  Brad said the idea is to plant Garry oak groves on at least part
of the land.  He said Garry oak trees typically have a life span of 200-300 years and that many
of the City’s oak trees are in the latter half of that range.  This program would continue the
tradition of nurturing the City’s name sake.  There is water located nearby and irrigation will
be necessary to establish the seedlings.  The soil will need to be amended and the plan is to
include oak mulch.  The trees will also need to be protected from rabbits, squirrels and deer.
Brad said hundreds of trees can be planted on this acreage and they may group the oak groves.
The proposal will need to go before City Council, possibly in November.

Brad has worked with the Oak Harbor High School Ecology Club on a similar project. They 
have 77 Garry oak seedlings growing in their greenhouse.  The students hope to grow them to 
be at least six feet tall before planting them within the community.  (Their trees are not 
intended for the Boyer Property.)  Hundreds of seedlings will be needed for the oak grove 
project and it will take many years to establish them on site.  The Oak Harbor Garden Club is 
interested in helping with this project and they have requested basic instructions on how to 
plant Garry oak acorns, copies of which were handed out to the Park Board. 

3. Electronic Reader Board Grant Proposal

71



Hank distributed copies of a Hotel-Motel Tax Grant Program Proposal.  He explained that he 
will be submitting the grant funding request for the purchase and installation of an electronic 
reader board to be placed at Beeksma-Gateway Park.  The reader board would be used to 
promote special community events at no cost to event organizers.   

72



OAK HARBOR PARK BOARD 
Monday, October 13, 2014, 11:30 a.m. 
Page 2 

 
The current banner program allows for organizations to request banners to be hung at the park 
to promote their events, but only one banner can be efficiently hung at the park location, and 
we often have multiple banner requests for the same week.  An electronic reader board would 
have the ability to promote numerous special community events at the same time.  Hank also 
distributed a photo of an example of an electronic reader board.  He indicated that the current 
banner policy would need to be updated.  Cac added that the policy may need to include 
rules, regulated by code and based on safety standards, about message parameters and the 
number of items that can be listed on the reader board. 
 
K.C. voiced her concerns about vandalism.  Skip asked if the messages would pop up on the 
screen, as opposed to a scrolling screen, so that all of the event information is shown together 
in one shot.  He also expressed concern about wind and weather.  Hank said the board would 
likely be engineered to withstand the weather.  Mike asked if the reader board would require 
state approval.  Cac responded that only local permitting would be necessary.   
 
Hank said the deadline to submit the grant proposal is October 17 and recipients should be 
chosen by the end of the year.  The timeline indicates that bids would be solicited in January 
2015, the proposed project would go before City Council for approval in February, and the 
electronic reader board should be operational to promote special community events by the end 
of April 2015.  Hank asked for Park Board approval of the grant proposal. 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Daisy Sapida, seconded by K.C. Pohtilla, the Park Board 
unanimously approved the Hotel-Motel Tax Grant Program Proposal for the purchase and 
installation of an electronic reader board to be placed at Beeksma-Gateway Park to promote 
special community events and forward their recommendation to City Council for approval. 
 

4. Leave a Book / Take a Book Proposal 
Hank said he met with Bob and Rhonda Severns about their proposal to construct a box, to be 
placed near the Teacher’s Tribute Garden and dedicated art piece at Windjammer Park, for 
people to leave a book and/or take a book as part of a book sharing program.  He passed out a 
photo of an example of such a box.  The Severns’ said they had contacted Rick Nash, the artist 
who constructed the teacher’s tribute art piece, and he indicated that he is ok with the location 
of the box as long as it does not sit too high.  K.C. expressed her concern regarding vandalism 
of the box.  Hank said he would recommend that it be made with sturdy, vandal proof 
materials.  He stated that this would be a pilot program. 
 
MOTION:  Moved by K.C. Pohtilla, seconded by Daisy Sapida, the Park Board 
unanimously approved Bob and Rhonda Severns’ proposal to construct and install a “Leave 
a Book / Take a Book” box near the Teacher’s Tribute Garden at Windjammer Park and 
forward their recommendation to City Council for approval. 

73



 
OAK HARBOR PARK BOARD 
Monday, October 13, 2014, 11:30 a.m. 
Page 3 

 
5. Smoking in Parks 

Hank passed out information collected from the internet about smoking in parks.  One 
document was Revised Code of Washington (RCW) Chapter 70.160 Smoking in Public Places 
and the other was King County’s Tobacco-Free Parks Policy Implementation Guide.  He asked 
the Park Board members to take the documents home and review them, then bring them back 
to the next Park Board meeting to discuss proposing such a policy to City Council. 
 
K.C. asked about signage.  Hank indicated that we would need municipal code or policy to 
back it up.  She asked if the Police Department could drive by the parks to monitor the 
smoking.  Mike asked if this might be something Citizens on Patrol could monitor.  He 
indicated that he’s received complaints from wives club members about people smoking near 
playgrounds.  Cac said we may be able to establish a policy which allows us to create smoke 
free zones in parks and install signage. 
 

6. Permaculture Food Forest Dedication 
Hank said the dedication of the Permaculture Food Forest is scheduled for Friday, October 24, 
at 4:00 p.m. on site near Hal Ramaley Park.  He stated that the contract with Spin Café was not 
signed by them due to some issues including the cost of insurance.  The City’s Law 
Department is looking into a Community Garden Contract with the Food Forest Organizers.  
Hank added that Spin Café is no longer associated with the Food Forest and Netsah Zylinsky, 
Certified Permaculture Teacher, is now in charge of the project.   
 
Hank said he recently met with Garden Club representatives and Vivian Rogers Decker, who 
is the Homeless Liaison for OHHS and is associated with Spin Café, regarding the kids that 
have been hanging out at the Hal Ramaley Park Gazebo.  The Garden Club has been 
concerned about increasing damage and vandalism at the park.  Beginning in June, the Café 
began sponsoring a pop up café “Food Lifeline” for kids at Flintstone Park, which has likely 
attracted the kids to hang out at Hal Ramaley Park.  It was determined that a young woman 
who is associated with the Café would be willing to mentor the kids, discourage vandalism, 
and encourage them to take ownership and clean up after themselves.  Hank said they may 
also install a camera.  Mike suggested fencing or blocking the property near the old Element 
and Island Transit so that they can’t drive through the area. 
 

7. Parks Update 
 The fence has been taken down around the 42” Storm Water Outfall Project and grass has 

been planted. 

 The Parks Division will install skate stops at Scenic Heights Trailhead. 

 They are currently over seeding and top dressing the sports fields. 

74



 

75



OAK HARBOR PARK BOARD 
Monday, October 13, 2014, 11:30 a.m. 
Page 4 
 

 On Saturday, October 18, there will be a group of volunteers installing a temporary path 
and fencing with a handrail at VFW Park.  Grant funding has been secured for a permanent 
solution to improve the park after the landslide that took place in February 2013.  Cac 
added that the design work is scheduled for 2015 and construction in 2016. 

 Hank said an Ad-Hoc Committee has been formed to recommend uses for the Post Office 
Garry oak tree wood.  The wood is to be used in a manner that will honor and 
commemorate the tree for current and future citizens of Oak Harbor.  The Committee 
wanted to reach out to the community to get their ideas for the use of the wood.  There will 
be a flyer in utility bills and notifications on the City’s web site and Channel 10.  The 
deadline date to submit ideas is November 1.  Daisy asked if an art piece commemorating 
the tree on site could be included.  Hank indicated that would likely be part of the plan. 

 

 Joel stated that he has noticed that the sprinklers at Walgreens and Coldwell Banker/Tara 
Properties watering a bench and the sidewalk and that they often seem to be running on rainy 
days.  Hank indicated that he would contact the Water Division and ask them to let the businesses 
know about this. 

 Mike asked about a status update of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Project.  Cac said staff has 
been meeting with consultants regarding footprint, conceptual design and essential features.  
Permitting issues are still in process.  He indicated that there may be charrette group discussions 
regarding concepts within the next couple of months, and next year the design components 
should be finalized.  Skip asked if the Bayshore Drive connection could be a pedestrian only 
plaza.  Cac said the Bayshore Drive connection is yet to be determined and that the City Council 
will need to discuss the master plan for the Bayshore area corridor. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 

Deborah Mueller 
Public Works Administrative Assistant 

 

76



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-40: 2015 
Legislative Priorities

FROM: Larry Cort, City Administrator 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to discuss and consider approval of the City of Oak Harbor Legislative 
Priorities for the 2015 session.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
As one method for conveying information to the State Legislature for the upcoming Legislative session, 
the attached resolution outlines those issues which the City of Oak Harbor believes should have the 
highest priorities in 2015. A resolution by City Council conveying its wishes to our Legislators can convey
a formal and more comprehensive message than sending or voicing individual requests.  Moreover, a 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-40: 2015 
Legislative Priorities

FROM: Larry Cort, City Administrator 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to discuss and consider approval of the City of Oak Harbor Legislative 
Priorities for the 2015 session.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
As one method for conveying information to the State Legislature for the upcoming Legislative session, 
the attached resolution outlines those issues which the City of Oak Harbor believes should have the 
highest priorities in 2015. A resolution by City Council conveying its wishes to our Legislators can convey 
a formal and more comprehensive message than sending or voicing individual requests.  Moreover, a a formal and more comprehensive message than sending or voicing individual requests.  Moreover, a 
resolution provides a concise listing as a priority of those needs the City Council deems crucial.

The attached 2015 Legislative Priorities is based on the Council discussion at the October 22, 2014 
special Council workshop. Once adopted, this resolution will be forward to the Association of 
Washington Cities and to our legislative partners. We expect to extend invitations to Representatives 
Dave Hayes and Norma Smith and Senator Barbara Bailey to meet with the Council later this year.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item was discussed at the October 22, 2014 Council Workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discuss and consider approval of Resolution No. 14-40 

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

a formal and more comprehensive message than sending or voicing individual requests.  Moreover, a 
resolution provides a concise listing as a priority of those needs the City Council deems crucial.

The attached 2015 Legislative Priorities is based on the Council discussion at the October 22, 2014 
special Council workshop. Once adopted, this resolution will be forward to the Association of 
Washington Cities and to our legislative partners. We expect to extend invitations to Representatives 
Dave Hayes and Norma Smith and Senator Barbara Bailey to meet with the Council later this year.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item was discussed at the October 22, 2014 Council Workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discuss and consider approval of Resolution No. 14-40 

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

8.

77



AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Resolution 14-40

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Resolution 14-40

78



Resolution 14-40 – Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-40 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR IDENTIFYING 2015 WASHINGTON STATE 

LEGISLATIVE PRIORITY ISSUES 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has a keen interest in how the Washington State Legislature actions can and do 

impact the City; and 

WHEREAS, it is the City’s intention to work with the Governor’s Office, the leadership throughout the Senate and 

House, and the Association of Washington Cities with specific help from the City’s 10
th

 District Legislators, and

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has a good positive working relationship with the current 10
th

 District Legislators;

and 

WHEREAS,  this positive working relationship is fostered by the frequent and ongoing exchange of information where 

the specific needs and priorities of the City of Oak Harbor are clearly expressed to our 10
th

 District Legislators; and

WHEREAS, by the attached Exhibit “A” the City of Oak Harbor wishes to extend to Washington State Senator Barbara 

Bailey, Representative Norma Smith, and Representative Dave Hayes the City of Oak Harbor’s 2015 Legislative Priority 

Issues. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, that the at-

tached Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted as the 2015 Legislative Priority Issues of the City of Oak Harbor. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor this 18th Day of November, 2014. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

ATTEST: Approved as to Form: 

_______________________ ________________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

79



Resolution 14-40 – Page 2 

EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 2014 LEGISLATIVE PRIORITY ISSUES 

 
 

1. Support and promote the City’s applications to State funding sources to help pay for re-

placing Oak Harbor’s wastewater treatment plant to relieve a portion of the burden on lo-

cal ratepayers. 

 

2. Sponsor and advocate for an amendment to the Revised Code of Washington that will 

grant municipal-owned marinas the same leasing options available to port district-owned 

marinas.  

 

3. Retain CAPRON Transportation funding as a critical resource for Whidbey Island sur-

face transportation needs. 

 

4. Support reinstatement and long-term viability of funding for the Public Works Trust 

Fund Program. 

 

5. Support grant funding from the Department of Commerce to local agencies who must 

comply with the State mandate to review and update local comprehensive plans by 2016.  

 

6. Support a Legislative effort to limit local government liability and financial burdens 

caused by unreasonable public records requests.  

 

7. Refrain from supporting any Legislative proposals that would establish a mandate upon 

local government without providing the necessary funds to fully support the mandate.  

 

8. Support a Legislative effort to continue planning for an alternative to and preservation of 

the Deception Pass Bridge.  

 

9. Support a Legislative effort to repeal those portions of RCW 36.70A.070(6) requiring Is-

land County and its cities such as Oak Harbor to include State highways and ferry route 

capacity in determining transportation concurrency in local comprehensive plans.   

 

10. Continue to support Legislative efforts to provide ongoing funding assistance for Phase 

II cities subject to NPDES storm water regulation and permitting.  

 

11.  Refrain from supporting any Legislative proposal that requires the election of all munic-

ipal court judges. 

 

80



Resolution 14-40 – Page 3 

12. Continue to be diligent in addressing the State budget crisis without transferring State 

obligations onto local government. 

 

13. Continue to support Legislation that provides flexibility at the point of collecting devel-

opment impact fees. 

 

14. Support amending the frequency of required financial audits for cities and towns with 

records of clean audits. 

 

15. Remove the permanent $10 million diversion of liquor taxes to local governments and 

maintain the historic revenue sharing system for liquor profits. 

 

16. Share marijuana tax revenue with cities. 

 

 

 

 

81



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-46: Remove 
Pioneer Plaza funds designation 
from lodging tax revenues.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of Resolution No. 14-46 is to uncommit approximately $130,000 in loding tax revenues  
previously identified in 1998 as a grant matching committment for the Pioneer Plaza Project.  At the 
November 5, 2014 City Council meeting, a motion was made and seconded for staff to bring forward to 
City Council a Resolution removing the Pioneer Plaza Project designation from approximately $130,000 
of lodging tax funds.

SUMMARY STATEMENT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-46: Remove 
Pioneer Plaza funds designation 
from lodging tax revenues.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of Resolution No. 14-46 is to uncommit approximately $130,000 in loding tax revenues  
previously identified in 1998 as a grant matching committment for the Pioneer Plaza Project.  At the 
November 5, 2014 City Council meeting, a motion was made and seconded for staff to bring forward to 
City Council a Resolution removing the Pioneer Plaza Project designation from approximately $130,000 
of lodging tax funds.

SUMMARY STATEMENTSUMMARY STATEMENT
In early 1998, the City of Oak Harbor began a project entitlted the Pioneer Plaza project.  The City 
applied for grant funding for the construction of the proposed plaza, to be located on the corner of Dock 
Street and Pioneed Way, with City Council designating approximately $130,000 in lodging tax funds as
City's matching contribution.  Unfortunately, the City was not successful in obtaining the grant.  Even 
though the grant effort was not successful, no further action was taken to either pursue other financing for 
the project or to de-commit the loding tax funds.

Resolution No. 14-46 is a 'house keeping' item designed to clarify the status of the approximately 
$130,000 in lodging tax revenues previously earmarked by a previous City Council as matching  funds for 
the Pioneer Plaza project.  The Resolution de-commits the funds, returning these monies to an 
unrestricted status.  Earlier in 2014 via the mid-biennial budget amendment, these funds were transferred 
back to the Lodging Tax Fund #116 from the Windjammer Fund #325.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
This resolution eliminates the restriction placed on these funds as a matching component of the Pioneer 
Plaza grant application.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In early 1998, the City of Oak Harbor began a project entitlted the Pioneer Plaza project.  The City 
applied for grant funding for the construction of the proposed plaza, to be located on the corner of Dock 
Street and Pioneed Way, with City Council designating approximately $130,000 in lodging tax funds as 
City's matching contribution.  Unfortunately, the City was not successful in obtaining the grant.  Even 
though the grant effort was not successful, no further action was taken to either pursue other financing for 
the project or to de-commit the loding tax funds.

Resolution No. 14-46 is a 'house keeping' item designed to clarify the status of the approximately 
$130,000 in lodging tax revenues previously earmarked by a previous City Council as matching  funds for 
the Pioneer Plaza project.  The Resolution de-commits the funds, returning these monies to an 
unrestricted status.  Earlier in 2014 via the mid-biennial budget amendment, these funds were transferred 
back to the Lodging Tax Fund #116 from the Windjammer Fund #325.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
This resolution eliminates the restriction placed on these funds as a matching component of the Pioneer 
Plaza grant application.

 8.

82



CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 14-46

DISCUSSION
None

AUTHORITY
Under RCW 35A.11.020, The legislative body of each code city shall have power to organize and 
regulate its internal affairs within the provisions of this title and its charter, if any; and to define the 
functions, powers, and duties of its officers and employees.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 14-46 Unrestrict Lodging Tax Funds Dedicated to Pioneer Plaza Project

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 14-46

DISCUSSION
None

AUTHORITY
Under RCW 35A.11.020, The legislative body of each code city shall have power to organize and 
regulate its internal affairs within the provisions of this title and its charter, if any; and to define the 
functions, powers, and duties of its officers and employees.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 14-46 Unrestrict Lodging Tax Funds Dedicated to Pioneer Plaza Project

83



Resolution No. 14-46:  A Resolution to unrestrict lodging tax revenues from the Pioneer Plaza Project. Page 1 

 

    RESOLUTION NO. 14-46 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR COUNCIL REMOVING A PREVIOUS 1998 

DESIGNATION COMMITMENT ON APPROXIMATELY $130,000 IN LODGING TAX FUNDS 

PREVIOUSLY SET ASIDE AS MATCHING FUNDS FOR A GRANT TO CONSTRUCT THE 

PIONEER PLAZA PROJECT.  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council in 1998 authorized the designation of approximately $130,000 in lodging tax 

revenues to be utilized as the City’s matching contribution towards obtaining a grant to construct the Pioneer 

Plaza Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s was unsuccessful in obtaining approval for its grant application; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Council desires to remove any and all designations of lodging tax to be utilized as a grant 

matching component for funding the construction of the Pioneer Way Plaza project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the undesignated funds are to be returned to an unrestricted status. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, 

RESOLVES TO REMOVE THE RESTRICTION DESIGNATION ON ANY AND ALL LODGING TAX 

FUNDS PREVIOUSLY SET ASIDE FOR THE PIONEER PLAZA CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, WITH ALL 

APPLICABLE FUNDS BEING RETURNED TO AN UNRESTRICTED STATUS. 

 

PASSED and approved by the City Council this 18
TH

 day of November, 2014.  

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

       

Attest:       Approved as to Form: 

 

 

________________________   _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, Esq., City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 

Introduction:  

Adopted:    

Published:  
 

 

 

84



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-47: HDHP Health 
Savings Account funding for 
2015

FROM: Sara Piccone, Human Resources Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents a proposed Resolution 14-47 that would, if approved, continue the City's 
current funding level for the Health Savings Account (HSA) for employees enrolled in the High 
Deductible Health Plan in 2015.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Employees who enrolled in the HDHP benefit plan effective December 1, 2013 had, at the City's 
expense, their Health Savings Accounts funded to the IRS maximum for 2013 ($3,250 for employees or 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-47: HDHP Health 
Savings Account funding for 
2015

FROM: Sara Piccone, Human Resources Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents a proposed Resolution 14-47 that would, if approved, continue the City's 
current funding level for the Health Savings Account (HSA) for employees enrolled in the High 
Deductible Health Plan in 2015.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Employees who enrolled in the HDHP benefit plan effective December 1, 2013 had, at the City's 
expense, their Health Savings Accounts funded to the IRS maximum for 2013 ($3,250 for employees or expense, their Health Savings Accounts funded to the IRS maximum for 2013 ($3,250 for employees or 
$6,450 for employees with families). Beginning with the first pay period after January 1, 2014, monthly 
payments amounting to one-twelfth of the IRS maximum for 2014 ($3,300 for employees or $6,550 for 
employees with families) were paid by the City into the HSAs of participating employees.

As part of the 2015-16 Budget process, the City Council will consider and approve the funding 
amount for Health Savings Accounts for those employees choosing the HDHP option in 2015. The 
2015-16 Budget will not be adopted until December 2, 2014 at the earliest. Unfortunately, this date is 
after the open enrolment period during which the City's employees will select their 2015 benefit plan 
which, in effect, will make it difficult for our employees to select the HDHP/HSA plan without knowing 
the exact funding level of the City's contribution in 2015. The HDHP/HSA option has been a popular 
choice for some employees (26 are currently enrolled) and are comparable in cost to the other two plans.

To rectify this difficulty and to give our employees the security they need to make a wise health care 
choice, the Administration is recommending that the City continue funding the HSA for 2015 based on 
the IRS maximum ($3,350 for employees or $6,650 for employees with families) as it did in 
2014.  Because the final budget will not be adopted until after the health benefit enrolment period, the 
Administration proposes that the Council adopt Resolution 14-47 to provide the necessary security for 
employees to make the wisest possible choice for their health benefit plan. 

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

expense, their Health Savings Accounts funded to the IRS maximum for 2013 ($3,250 for employees or 
$6,450 for employees with families). Beginning with the first pay period after January 1, 2014, monthly 
payments amounting to one-twelfth of the IRS maximum for 2014 ($3,300 for employees or $6,550 for 
employees with families) were paid by the City into the HSAs of participating employees.

As part of the 2015-16 Budget process, the City Council will consider and approve the funding 
amount for Health Savings Accounts for those employees choosing the HDHP option in 2015. The 
2015-16 Budget will not be adopted until December 2, 2014 at the earliest. Unfortunately, this date is 
after the open enrolment period during which the City's employees will select their 2015 benefit plan 
which, in effect, will make it difficult for our employees to select the HDHP/HSA plan without knowing 
the exact funding level of the City's contribution in 2015. The HDHP/HSA option has been a popular 
choice for some employees (26 are currently enrolled) and are comparable in cost to the other two plans.

To rectify this difficulty and to give our employees the security they need to make a wise health care 
choice, the Administration is recommending that the City continue funding the HSA for 2015 based on 
the IRS maximum ($3,350 for employees or $6,650 for employees with families) as it did in 
2014.  Because the final budget will not be adopted until after the health benefit enrolment period, the 
Administration proposes that the Council adopt Resolution 14-47 to provide the necessary security for 
employees to make the wisest possible choice for their health benefit plan. 

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

 8.

85



For 2015, fund Health Savings Accounts at $3,350 for employees and $6,650 for employees with 
families. The attachment compares the funding levels for the plans currently offered by the City. The 
HDHP/HSA cost is roughly comparable to the HealthFirst option.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 14-47

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2015 Health Benefits Employer Cost Comparison
2. Draft Resolution 14-47

For 2015, fund Health Savings Accounts at $3,350 for employees and $6,650 for employees with 
families. The attachment compares the funding levels for the plans currently offered by the City. The 
HDHP/HSA cost is roughly comparable to the HealthFirst option.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 14-47

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2015 Health Benefits Employer Cost Comparison
2. Draft Resolution 14-47

86



Employer Cost Annually Employee Spouse 1 Child 2+Children HSA Funding Totals

Healthfirst (Original)
     Employee Only $8,219.16 $8,219.16
     Employee and Spouse $8,219.16 $6,211.08 $14,430.24
     Employee, Spouse and 1 Child $8,219.16 $6,211.08 $3,056.04 $17,486.28
     Full Family $8,219.16 $6,211.08 $5,588.04 $20,018.28
     Employee and 1 Child $8,219.16 $3,056.04 $11,275.20
     Employee and 2+ Children $8,219.16 $5,588.04 $13,807.20

Healthfirst 250
     Employee Only $7,518.00 $7,518.00
     Employee and Spouse $7,518.00 $5,685.84 $13,203.84
     Employee, Spouse and 1 Child $7,518.00 $5,685.84 $2,801.04 $16,004.88
     Full Family $7,518.00 $5,685.84 $5,116.68 $18,320.52
     Employee and 1 Child $7,518.00 $2,801.04 $10,319.04
     Employee and 2+ Children $7,518.00 $5,116.68 $12,634.68

Group Health $10 Copay
     Employee Only $6,478.20 $6,478.20
     Employee and Spouse $6,478.20 $4,787.16 $11,265.36
     Employee, Spouse and 1 Child $6,478.20 $4,787.16 $2,440.44 $13,705.80
     Full Family $6,478.20 $4,787.16 $4,880.88 $16,146.24
     Employee and 1 Child $6,478.20 $2,440.44 $8,918.64
     Employee and 2+ Children $6,478.20 $4,880.88 $11,359.08

High Deductible Health Plan *whole
     Employee Only $4,400.40 $3,350.00 $7,750.40
     Employee and Spouse $4,400.40 $3,340.92 $6,650.00 $14,391.32
     Employee, Spouse and 1 Child $4,400.40 $3,340.92 $1,675.20 $6,650.00 $16,066.52
     Full Family $4,400.40 $3,340.92 $3,046.92 $6,650.00 $17,438.24
     Employee and 1 Child $4,400.40 $1,675.20 $6,650.00 $12,725.60
     Employee and 2+ Children $4,400.40 $3,046.92 $6,650.00 $14,097.32

2015 Health Benefits Employer Cost Comparison

87



RESOLUTION NO.  14-47 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR UPDATING THE FUNDING 
OF THE HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES ENROLLING IN THE HIGH DEDUCTIBLE 
HEALTH PLAN IN BENEFIT YEAR 2015 

WHEREAS, health insurance benefits for City of Oak Harbor employees promote the health and well-being of 

City employees and their families, reduce the use of sick leave and promote employee retention; and  

WHEREAS, employees who enrolled in the HDHP effective December 1, 2013 had at the City's expense, their 

HSA funded to the IRS maximum for 2013 ($3,250 for employees or $6,450 for employees with families); and   

WHEREAS, Beginning with the first pay period after January 1, 2014, monthly payments amounting to one-

twelfth of the IRS maximum for 2014 of $3,300 for employees or $6,550 for employees with families were paid 

by the City into the HSAs of participating employees. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR THAT: 

Section 1. Administration is recommending that the City continue funding the HSA at the IRS maximum for 

2015. 

Section 2.  Beginning with the first pay period after January 1, 2015, monthly payments amounting to one-

twelfth of the IRS maximum for 2015 ($3,350 for employees or $6,650 for employees with families) will be 

paid by the City into the HSAs of participating employees.   

Section  3.  This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 18th day of November, 2014. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Introduction: 

Adopted: 

88



Published:  

 

89



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign 
Amendment No. 2 to the Gray 
& Osborne Professional 
Services Agreement for the 
Water System Plan.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill recommends City Council approval of Amendment 2 to the Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) for developing the Water System Plan with the engineering consulting firm of Gray &
Osborne, Inc..

SUMMARY STATEMENT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign 
Amendment No. 2 to the Gray 
& Osborne Professional 
Services Agreement for the 
Water System Plan.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill recommends City Council approval of Amendment 2 to the Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) for developing the Water System Plan with the engineering consulting firm of Gray & 
Osborne, Inc..

SUMMARY STATEMENTSUMMARY STATEMENT
The City of Oak Harbor water utility owns and operates three water supply wells as a back-up to the 
supply from Anacortes. Each well has chlorinating water treatment equipment that automatically adds a 
small amount of chlorine to the water as it is pumped from the wells. The chlorine is added to eliminate 
bacteria should any ever get into the water supply. There is also a chlorine treatment system at the Ault 
Field Pump Station that is a back-up to the treatment provided by the Anacortes Water Treatment Plant.

The City of Oak Harbor Water Utility has recently completed the process of developing a Water System
Plan with assistance from the engineering consulting firm of Gray & Osborne. While reviewing the draft 
Water System Plan, the Washington State Department of Health determined that they did not have 
sufficient documentation describing the equipment used to chlorinate water produced by the Oak Harbor 
water supply wells and as back up to the treatment from Anacortes. The Oak Harbor Water Utility is 
required to submit documentation as described in WAC 246-290-120 to confirm adequacy, and 
effectiveness of the chlorine water treatment systems.

Staff recommends amending Gray & Osborne’s Professional Services Agreement for the Water System
Plan to include documentation of the City’s Chlorine Treatment Equipment. Since this was an unexpected 
comment from the Department of Health, it was not included in their original scope of services. The 
attached amendment adds this scope of services to their existing contract.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The City of Oak Harbor water utility owns and operates three water supply wells as a back-up to the 
supply from Anacortes. Each well has chlorinating water treatment equipment that automatically adds a 
small amount of chlorine to the water as it is pumped from the wells. The chlorine is added to eliminate 
bacteria should any ever get into the water supply. There is also a chlorine treatment system at the Ault 
Field Pump Station that is a back-up to the treatment provided by the Anacortes Water Treatment Plant.

The City of Oak Harbor Water Utility has recently completed the process of developing a Water System 
Plan with assistance from the engineering consulting firm of Gray & Osborne. While reviewing the draft 
Water System Plan, the Washington State Department of Health determined that they did not have 
sufficient documentation describing the equipment used to chlorinate water produced by the Oak Harbor 
water supply wells and as back up to the treatment from Anacortes. The Oak Harbor Water Utility is 
required to submit documentation as described in WAC 246-290-120 to confirm adequacy, and 
effectiveness of the chlorine water treatment systems.

Staff recommends amending Gray & Osborne’s Professional Services Agreement for the Water System 
Plan to include documentation of the City’s Chlorine Treatment Equipment. Since this was an unexpected 
comment from the Department of Health, it was not included in their original scope of services. The 
attached amendment adds this scope of services to their existing contract.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

 11.

90



Funds Required: $6,500
Appropriation Source: Water Utility Funds

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item has not been presented at a Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment 2 to the PSA with Gray & Osborne which 
increases the scope of services to include documentation of the chlorine treatment systems described 
above.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. PSA Amendment No. 1
2. Gray & Osborne Water System Plan PSA
3. PSA Amendment No. 2

Funds Required: $6,500
Appropriation Source: Water Utility Funds

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item has not been presented at a Council workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment 2 to the PSA with Gray & Osborne which 
increases the scope of services to include documentation of the chlorine treatment systems described 
above.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. PSA Amendment No. 1
2. Gray & Osborne Water System Plan PSA
3. PSA Amendment No. 2

91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



 
Amendment No. __2__ 11/6/2014 Page 1 of 2 
 
 

Consultant Agreement Amendment 
Number ____2______ 
 

Organization and Address 
 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: 360-279-4525 

Original Agreement Title: 
Water System Plan Update 

Project Number: ENG 08-03 
 

Execution Date 
Jan 2, 2013 

Completion Date (Prior) 
Dec 31, 2014 

Project Title 
Water System Plan Update 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
 
$53,050 

Description of Work 
Updating the Oak Harbor Water Utility Water System Plan in accordance with the requirements 
of WAC Chapter 246-290 
 
 
The City of Oak Harbor           
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with   Gray & Osborne, Inc.    
and executed on _January 2, 2013_____ and identified as  Water System Plan Update   
              
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
Chlorine treatment equipment documentation as described in attached Exhibit A. _____________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

139



 
Amendment No. __2__ 11/6/2014 Page 2 of 2 
 
 

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO: June 30, 2015 _____________________ 
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
 
By:         By:        
 
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
 
             
         Date 

140



Page 1 of 2 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 
CHLORINE TREATMENT EQUIPMENT DOCUMENTATION 

 
November, 2014 

(G&O #20146.28) 
 

The City of Oak Harbor (City) is required to submit documentation of its existing chlorine 

treatment systems for all ground/or surface water systems that serve its retail and wholesale 

customers.  The City recently completed its DRAFT 2013 Water System Plan Update (Gray & 

Osborne, 2013) which details information about the water system and its components. 

 

The required documentation must include information on the equipment and processes currently 

in place and the basis for the sizing and dosing of the existing chlorine treatment system.  This 

information was not included in the original submission of the Water System Plan (WSP), and as 

such, must be submitted as a separate engineering document. 

 

The City must submit the documentation to DOH as a separate submittal on or before March 1, 

2015.   

 
The proposed engineering services to be provided to the City by Gray & Osborne will include the 
necessary work to prepare the chlorine treatment equipment as-built documentation for submittal 
to DOH.   
 
The scope of work of services provided for this project is outlined below. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK  
 
Prepare Chlorine Treatment Equipment Documentation 
 

1. Attend a kickoff meeting with City staff and other key treatment facility personnel. 
 

2. Tour the chlorine treatment facilities and photograph, catalog, and record significant 
information regarding the treatment equipment and processes.  
 

3. Document the existing treatment system based on information gathered at the kickoff 
meeting.  Documentation will include a technical memorandum that describes the 
treatment system and provides the basis for critical design information.  This 
memorandum will be provided by Gray & Osborne (G&O).  Documentation will also 
include record drawings of the treatment equipment, manufacturer’s technical 
information, and operations and maintenance information, all of which will be provided 
by the City. 

 
4. Prepare a DOH Hypochlorination Checklist, and submit this checklist with supporting 

documentation to the City and DOH. 

 
5. Submit DRAFT documentation to the City for review within 4 weeks after project kickoff 

meeting.  Submittal shall include 1 electronic copy and 2 comb-bound hard copies. 

 

141



Page 2 of 2 

6. Discuss via phone or email revisions to the documentation based on review comments 
provided by the City.  The City should complete their review and provide comments to 
G&O within 4 weeks of receiving the submitted draft. 

 
7. Integrate any/all recommended changes from the City’s review into the final 

documentation package and prepare the final documentation. 

 
8. Submit a final draft of the chlorine treatment equipment documentation to the City as 

well as to DOH.  In both cases, the submittal shall include 1 electronic copy and 2 comb-
bound hard copies.  Final submittal should occur within 4 weeks from receiving revision 
comments from the City. 

  
This memorandum will act as a stand-alone document and subsequent or resultant revisions to 
the WSP are not covered in this scope of work. 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
Deliverable Date 
Attend Project kick-off meeting Within 2 weeks from Notice to Proceed  
Submit Draft Documentation Within 4 weeks from Kick-off meeting 
Submit Final Documentation Within 4 weeks from Draft revision 
 
*Plan must be submitted to DOH by March 1, 2015. 
 
 
DOCUMENTS PROVIDED BY OWNER 
 

1. Manufacturer’s O&M Manuals for all treatment equipment. 
 

2. Record drawings, as-built plans, specifications, operations and maintenance information, 
and other technical information for treatment equipment facilities. 

142



Principal

Hours

Project 

Engineer 

Hours

AutoCAD 

Tech.

Hours

1

Attend Project Kick-off Meeting; Tour photograph, and catalog existing treatment 

equipment 6 6

2 Prepare draft documentation 2 18 4

3 Review documentation review comments and prepare final documentation 10

4 QA/QC 2 2

10 36 4

Fully Burdened Billing Rate Range:* $112 to $188 $106 to $130 $45 to $85

$140 $110 $50

$1,400 $3,960 $200

Total Fully Burdened Labor Cost: $6,310

Direct Non-Salary Cost:

Mileage & Expenses (Mileage @ $0.56/mile) 100$                

Printing 90$                  

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: 6,500$             

*

Actual labor cost will be based on each employee's actual rate.  Estimated rates are for determining total estimated cost only.  

Fully burdened billing rates include direct salary cost, overhead, and profit.

EXHIBIT "B"

ENGINEERING SERVICES

SCOPE AND ESTIMATED COST

City of Oak Harbor Chlorine Treatment Equpment Documenation

Fully Burdened Labor Cost:

Tasks

Hour Estimate:

Estimated Fully Burdened Billing Rate:*

(November 6, 2014) Page 1 of _____
143



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign a 
Professional Services Agreement 
with BHC Consulting for the 
Stormwater Management Plan. 

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to seek City Council approval for the Mayor to sign a Professional 
Services Agreement with BHC Consulting for preparation of a Stormwater Management Plan.  

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In July 2013, the City of Oak Harbor was awarded a $50,000 grant by the Department of Ecology from
the Phase II Stormwater Pass-through Program. The purpose of this grant is to provide assistance to 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: November 18, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign a 
Professional Services Agreement 
with BHC Consulting for the 
Stormwater Management Plan. 

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to seek City Council approval for the Mayor to sign a Professional 
Services Agreement with BHC Consulting for preparation of a Stormwater Management Plan.  

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In July 2013, the City of Oak Harbor was awarded a $50,000 grant by the Department of Ecology from 
the Phase II Stormwater Pass-through Program. The purpose of this grant is to provide assistance to the Phase II Stormwater Pass-through Program. The purpose of this grant is to provide assistance to 
local cities to meet new requirements resulting from the NPDES permit. The grant does not require match
and the funds received must be expended by January 31, 2015.

The City of Oak Harbor currently operates our stormwater system through a National Pollution 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued by the Washington State Department of Ecology. 
Permit Special Condition S5 (attached) requires that the City maintain a Stormwater Management 
Program. The program is required to include:

- Public Education and Outreach
- Public Involvement and Participation
- Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination
- Controlling Runoff from New Development, Redevelopment and Construction Site

Due to workload and to remain in compliance with our NPDES Permit, staff recommends contracting 
with a professional engineer to prepare the SWMP. As with any engineering contract, staff is required to 
first select an engineer based on qualifications and then negotiate a scope of services. BHC Consulting 
was selected from the list of qualified engineers maintained by the Municipal Research and Services 
Center (MRSC). Staff has negotiated a scope of services and a copy has been attached to the 
Professional Services Agreement.

the Phase II Stormwater Pass-through Program. The purpose of this grant is to provide assistance to 
local cities to meet new requirements resulting from the NPDES permit. The grant does not require match 
and the funds received must be expended by January 31, 2015.

The City of Oak Harbor currently operates our stormwater system through a National Pollution 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued by the Washington State Department of Ecology. 
Permit Special Condition S5 (attached) requires that the City maintain a Stormwater Management 
Program. The program is required to include:

- Public Education and Outreach
- Public Involvement and Participation
- Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination
- Controlling Runoff from New Development, Redevelopment and Construction Site

Due to workload and to remain in compliance with our NPDES Permit, staff recommends contracting 
with a professional engineer to prepare the SWMP. As with any engineering contract, staff is required to 
first select an engineer based on qualifications and then negotiate a scope of services. BHC Consulting 
was selected from the list of qualified engineers maintained by the Municipal Research and Services 
Center (MRSC). Staff has negotiated a scope of services and a copy has been attached to the 
Professional Services Agreement.

11.

144



FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required: $22,518
Appropriation Source: Stormwater Fund / 2013-15 Municipal Stormwater Capacity Grant

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
None

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This agenda bill has not been discussed at a City Council Workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consultants for engineering 
services related to developing a stormwater management plan in the amount of $22,518.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. NPDES Permit Special Condition S5
2. Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consultants

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required: $22,518
Appropriation Source: Stormwater Fund / 2013-15 Municipal Stormwater Capacity Grant

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
None

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This agenda bill has not been discussed at a City Council Workshop.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consultants for engineering 
services related to developing a stormwater management plan in the amount of $22,518.

DISCUSSION

AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENTS
1. NPDES Permit Special Condition S5
2. Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consultants

145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

AND BHC CONSULTANTS, INC 
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into by and between the City 
of Oak Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and BHC Consultants, LLC, 
a Washington LLC, ("Consultant"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and 
performances contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding 
the annual update of the City’s Stormwater Management Plan as described in Article II. The 
general terms and conditions of the relationship between the City and the Consultant are 
specified in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in 
the Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with 
the standards of the Consultant’s profession. 

ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 

III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes,
amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the City 
when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery schedule. 
Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in cost or schedules will be 
addressed as follows: 

Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 
services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at 
no cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 
executed in writing by the parties. 

III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all
1 

167



documents produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and 
upon completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant will be 
responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted by the City. 

In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 
Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work product of the 
Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or termination, shall become 
the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and 
summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a prerequisite to final payment under 
this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 
or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this Agreement 
without the written authorization of Consultant. 

III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on November 19. 2014 and
shall terminate at midnight, June 30, 2015.  The parties may extend the term of this Agreement 
by written mutual agreement. 

III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be
assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 

III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in
the performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, shall 
be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all claims that 
may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees 
while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a consequence of any 
negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any 
of the work or services provided herein shall be the sole obligation of the Consultant. 

III.6 INDEMNITY.  Indemnification/Hold Harmless Consultant shall defend,
indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any 
and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, 
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City.  Should a court of 
competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the 
event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property 
caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant’s liability, including the duty and cost to 
defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence.  It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 
Consultant’s waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the 
purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The 
provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

2 

168



 III.7 INSURANCE. 
 
  a. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure, and 

maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work and services hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, 
representatives, employees or subcontractors.  The Consultant shall, before commencing 
work under this agreement, file with the City certificates of insurance coverage and the 
policy endorsement to be kept in force continuously during this Agreement, in a form 
acceptable to the City.  Said certificates and policy endorsement shall name the City, its 
officers, elected officials, agents and/or employees as an additional named insured with 
respect to all coverages except professional liability insurance and workers’ 
compensation.  The minimum insurance requirements shall be as follows: 

 
   (1) Comprehensive General Liability.  $1,000,000 combined single 

limit per occurrence for bodily injury personal injury and property damage;  
$2,000,000  general aggregate. 

 
   (2) Automobile Liability.  $300,000 combined single limit per 

accident for bodily injury and property damage. 
 
   (3) Workers' Compensation.  Workers' compensation limits as 

required by the Workers' Compensation Act of Washington. 
 
   (4) Consultant's Errors and Omissions Liability.  $1,000,000 per 

occurrence and as an annual aggregate. 
 
  b. Notice of Cancellation.  In the event that the Consultant receives notice 

(written, electronic or otherwise) that any of the above required insurance coverage is 
being cancelled and/or terminated, the Consultant shall immediately (within forty-eight 
(48) hours) provide written notification of such cancellation/termination to the City. 

 
  c. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance to be provided by Consultant shall 

be with a Bests rating of no less than A:VII, or if not rated by Bests, with minimum 
surpluses the equivalent of Bests' VII rating. 

 
  d. Verification of Coverage.  In signing this agreement, the Consultant is 

acknowledging and representing that required insurance is active and current. Further, 
throughout the term of this Agreement, the Consultant shall provide the City with proof 
of insurance upon request by the City. 

 
e. Insurance shall be Primary. The Consultant’s insurance coverage shall 

be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance 
pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. 

 

3 
 

169



f. No Limitation.  Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by this 
Agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage 
provided by such insurance or otherwise limit the recourse to any remedy available at law 
or in equity. 

 
g. Claims-made Basis.  Unless approved by the City all insurance policies 

shall be written on an “Occurrence” policy as opposed to a “Claims-made” policy.  The 
City may require an extended reporting endorsement on any approved “Claims-made” 
policy. 

 
 III.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 
OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal opportunity 
employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for employment or for 
services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital status, sex, sexual 
orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational qualification with regard, but not 
limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or any 
recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
selection for training, rendition of services.  The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as 
appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant understands and agrees that if it violates this 
nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement may be terminated by the City, and further that the 
Consultant will be barred from performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a 
showing is made satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and 
that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 
 
 III.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair 
employment practices. 
 
 III.10 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be performed and 
that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this Agreement are fully 
qualified and properly licensed to perform the work to which they will be assigned.  This 
Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of Washington.  
Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this Agreement shall be in Snohomish County 
Superior Court. 
 
 III.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the 

Consultant is an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his status as 
an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services required under 
this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part independent contractor test set 

4 
 

170



forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  The Consultant, as an independent 
contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and accomplishing the 
services required under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall make no claim of City 
employment nor shall claim any related employment benefits, social security, and/or 
retirement benefits. 

b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, 
and assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions from 
income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a result of this 
Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a result of this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other 

independent contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 

 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business 

license from the City. 
 

III.12 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the 
City of any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or potential 
conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a conflict is 
irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 
 
 III.13 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict 
confidence, and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any information 
regarding the City or services provided to the City. 
 

III.14 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall is responsible for all work performed by 
subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they 

directly hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, must 
be included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the following 
Subcontractors/Subconsultants: 
           Liedos Water and Waste (a Division of Louis Berger) 
 

c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants 
without the written approval of the City. 
 

5 
 

171



d. All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance 
coverages and limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide 
verification of said insurance coverage. 

 
 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
 IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City on a time and materials basis for 
services rendered under this Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as 
provided in this section.  In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant under this 
Agreement exceed $ 22,518 (see Exhibit B) without the written agreement of the 
Consultant and the City.  Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed 
and services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals 
necessary to complete the work.  In the event the City elects to expand the scope of 
services from that set forth in Exhibit A, the City shall pay Consultant a mutually agreed 
amount. 

 
b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services 

performed in the previous calendar month.  At a minimum, invoices shall include (1) a 
summary of previous invoices; (2) current invoice amount; (3) total current monthly 
billing; (4) amount authorized under this agreement; and (5) total authorized amount still 
remaining under the agreement.  The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records 
and provide them to the Cities upon request. 

 
  c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before 

the 20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
 IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 
contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the approval of 
the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been completed in compliance 
with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 
 

IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Consultant shall 
maintain all books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  All 
such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall be subject to 
inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor at all 
reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities for such inspection and 
audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor may copy such books, 
accounts and records where necessary to conduct or document an audit.  The Consultant shall 
preserve and make available all such books of account and records for a period of three (3) years 
after final payment under this Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any 
discrepancy in such financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate 
clarification and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. 

6 
 

172



 
 ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
 V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
  

City of Oak Harbor 
Joe Stowell, PE, City Engineer 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 
 

 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
 
BHC Consultants 
Craig Chambers 
President 
1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 500 
Seattle, WA 98101 

  
 
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 
notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
 V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement 
in whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 
 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 
shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of termination in 
accordance with payment provisions of Section VI.1. 
 
 V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation 
and compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 
 

V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together 
with attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties 
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  This 
Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written instrument properly signed by 
both parties. 
 

V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of 
this Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining 
provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations shall be construed 
and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be 
invalid. 

7 
 

173



b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory 
provision of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 

 V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party 
hereto of any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not 
in default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of either 
party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of this 
Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall not be 
construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair 
meaning and shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of 
authorship.  This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall 
lie in the Superior Court of Washington for Snohomish County, Washington. 
 
 V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and 
the same Agreement. 
 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  
The undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to bind 
the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 
 
 DATED this ______ day of ________________, 2014. 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR BHC Consultants, LLC 
 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
     Scott Dudley, Mayor          Craig P. Chambers, President 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney 

8 
 

174



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
City of Oak Harbor Stormwater Management Program Plan Update 

Scope of Work 

INTRODUCTION: 

As a requirement of the NPDES Phase II permit, the City must submit a Stormwater 
Management Program Plan (SWMP) annually.  For the new 2013-2018 permit, the 
format of the SWMP was modified such that the format is to describe the proposed 
actions of the City in the upcoming calendar year versus describing accomplishments 
during the prior year.  In addition, the proposed actions are to be described in the format 
following Section S5.C.  

BHC Consultants will assist the City of Oak Harbor to prepare and update the City’s 
prior SWMP to meet NPDES requirements.  The SWMP plan must be complete by 
January 31, 2015.  The following paragraphs describe the scope of work. 

Task 1:  Draft SWMP 

BHC will review the City’s latest SWMP as well as the requirements for the 2013-2018 
NPDES permit.  BHC will then meet with the City’s NPDES lead to review the City’s 
planned actions for the 2015 calendar year with regard to the requirements of Section 
S5.C of the permit. In advance of this meeting BHC will provide an abbreviated list/table 
of the permit requirements and highlight anticipated new or expanded activities that the 
City will likely need to begin in 2015.  This table can help guide the discussion for the 
meeting with the City.  Following the meeting with the City, BHC will prepare a Draft 
SWMP for the City.   

Assumptions: 

• City will provide a Word version of the SWMP 
• Descriptions of current activities that will continue, will not require significant 

editing 
• Descriptions of new/expanded activities will tend to be qualitative and based 

upon input from City staff. 
• One person from City staff will be designated to provide input to BHC on various 

activities  
• If the City elects to perform its own monitoring in lieu of contributing to regional 

monitoring, the City’s monitoring efforts will only generally be described (i.e., the 
scope does not include a monitoring plan). 

• Work does not include the Annual Report (due in March of 2015) 
• This scope does not include providing any alternative analysis regarding 

compliance strategies or white papers on compliance strategies. 

9 
 

175



 

Task 2:  Final SWMP 

Based on feedback and input from the City, BHC will update and finalize the SWMP. 

Assumptions: 

• City NPDES Lead will resolve any City comments from individual City staff that 
are contradictory and provide direction to BHC. 

 

Products: 

• Draft SWMP plan in Word 
• Final SWMP plan in Word 

 

10 
 

176



Y:\STORM\2014 Stormwater Management Plan\200 - Finance\210 -  Contracts\BHC Consultants\Budget 11-10-14 11/10/2014

Exhibit B - Budget
City of Oak Harbor - Stormwater Management Plan
Date: November 10, 2014

Billing Rate

Task Description Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost Hours Cost
1 Draft Stormwater Management Plan

5 1,000 24 5,520 60 7,500 16 1,600 15 1,200 5.0 500 125.0 17,320

2 Final Stormwater Management Plan
2 400 8 1,840 8 1,000 8 800 5 400 2.0 200 33.0 4,640

 
TOTAL LABOR 7 1,400 32 7,360 68 8,500 24 2,400 20 1,600 7 700 66 21,960
Other Direct Costs

Mileage  1 trip x 195 miles/ RT x $0.555/mile x 1.10 119
Printing, copying, mailing and communications @ 2.0% of Labor 439
TOTAL ODC 558

TOTAL 22,518$  

Pierson

Manager
125.00

Tice

TOTAL

230.00

Chambers

200.00

Project CAD/GIS
Support

Sifferman

100.0080.00

Clerical
Support

Editor

100.00

Olson

Senior Project

Giseburt

Engineer
Project

Engineer

177


	Agenda for November 18, 2014 Regular Council Meeting
	Proclamation of DECA (Distributive Education Clubs of America) Week for the week of November 17th.
	C/A 4.a Minutes of the Special and Regular City Council Meetings held on November 5, 2014.
	Minutes of Regular Meeting held on November 5, 2014
	Minutes of Special Meeting held on November 5, 2014

	C/A 6.b Approval of Accounts Payable and Payroll Check Numbers
	 Voucher Listing No. 1
	 Voucher Listing No. 2

	C/A 6.c Appointment of Penny Perka to the Oak Harbor Youth Commission for a term of three (3) years beginning December 2014 and ending December 2017.
	Biography Form - Penny Perka 11.2014

	C/A 6.d Reappointment of Marshall Goldberg to the Oak Harbor Library Board for a term of five (5) years expiring December 2019.
	Correspondence from Susan Norman, President, Oak Harbor Library Board - 10.09.2014

	C/A 6.e Resolution 14-45: Utility Tax for Arts Acquisition Fund #115.
	Resolution 14-45

	C/A 6.f Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Renewal for 3-year term.
	Enterprise Enrollment
	Enterprise Subscription Enrollment Product Selection Form
	Enterprise Enrollment Sub 250 Program Amendment ID W29
	Program Signature Form

	C/A 6.g Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the Public Works Truck Scale.
	Final Contract Voucher Certificate - PW Truck Scale

	C/A 6.h Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the 42-inch Stormwater Outfall at Windjammer Park.
	Final Contract Voucher Certificate - Windjammer Outfall

	C/A 6.i Leave a Book/Take a Book Program at Windjammer Park.
	Park Board Notes 10/13/14

	8.a Resolution 14-40: 2015 Legislative Priorities
	Resolution 14-40

	8.b Resolution 14-46: Remove Pioneer Plaza funds designation from lodging tax revenues.
	Resolution 14-46

	8.c Resolution 14-47: HDHP Health Savings Account funding for 2015
	2015 Health Benefits Employer Cost Comparison
	Resolution 14-47

	11.a Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Gray & Osborne Professional Services Agreement for the Water System Plan
	Amendment No. 1 - 12/2013
	Gray & Osborne Water System Plan Professional Services Agreement - 12/2012
	Amendment No. 2

	11.b Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consulting for the Stormwater Management Plan
	NPDES Permit Special Condition S5
	Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consultants





